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A.!Key Indicators 
 

 
 
 
(1) Customer resources include liabilities represented by securities.    
(2) The turnover ratio is given by the relationship between accounts receivable and customer resources.!  

31.12.2024 31.12.2023 31.12.2022

ACTIVITY (thousands of CVE)
Net Assets 35 760 603 41 351 896 36 778 787 

Customer Credit (gross) 6 468 106 7 378 477 7 317 373 

Resources (1) 17 490 937 20 926 707 17 822 555 

Financial Margin  674 651  954 677  637 827 

Bank Product (BP)  730 432 1 098 676  786 299 

Cash-Flow  433 548  827 638  492 675 

Net Income  392 984  671 191  433 140 

Operation
Number of Employees 49 46 43

LIQUIDITY
Resources at the Central Bank (mCVE)  890 682  732 516  612 091 

Deposit-to-Credit Ratio (%) (2) 36,98 35,3 41

ASSET QUALITY (%)
Default rate = Non-performing Loans > 90 days / Customer Credit (gross) 0,55% 0,41 1,03

Provision/Non-performing Loans > 90 days 109,77% 173,99 122,01

Provision/Client Credit 0,60% 0,71 1,25

Cost of Credit Risk (4) 0,21 0,43 0,30

PRODUCTIVITY / EFFICIENCY
Average Assets / Average Number of Employees (mCVE)  811 711  877 873  814 546 

Cash Flow/Average Number of Employees (mCVE)  9 127  18 599  12 016 

Overhead Costs/Average Assets (%) 0,01 0,01 0,88
Cost-to-Income (%) 45,85 28,24 42,39
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B.! Income and Profitability 
!

!

! !

31.12.2024 31.12.2023 31.12.2022

BALANCE SHEET (thousands of CVE)
Net Assets (NA) 35 760 603 41 351 896 36 778 787 
Financial Assets (FA) 23 804 690 24 554 070 27 380 446 
Equity (KP) 3 316 814 2 966 157 2 243 531 

PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT (thousands of CVE)
Net Interest Income  674 651  954 677  637 827 
+ Non-interest Margin (NIM)  55 781  143 999  148 472 
= Gross Income (GI)  730 432 1 098 676  786 299 
- Operating Costs (OC)  334 888  310 319  333 276 
=Gross Profit (GP)  395 544  788 357  453 023 
- Net Provisions for Replacements (NPR) ( 30 573)  20 138 ( 33 867)
= Profit Before Taxes (PBT)  426 117  768 219  486 890 
- Taxes (T) ( 33 133) ( 97 028) ( 53 750)
= Net Income (NI)  392 984  671 191  433 140 

PROFITABILITY (%)
Net Interest Margin (RF/AF)   2,83   3,89   2,33 
Business Margin (PB/AF)   3,07   4,47   2,87 
- Operating Costs Relevance (CO/AF)   1,41   1,26   1,22 
- Provisions Relevance  (PV/AF) (  0,13)   0,08 (  0,12)
= Return on Financial Assets (RL/AF)   1,93   3,52   1,97 
x Relevance of Financial Assets (AF/AL) 67% 59% 74%
= Return on Assets "ROA" (RL/AL)   1,10   1,62   1,18 
x Asset Utilization Ratio (AL/KP) 1078% 1394% 1639%
= Return on Equity "ROE" (RL/KP)   13,25   29,92   24,20 
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I.! Manegement Report 
 
1.! Message from the Executive Board 
 
 
Dear Customers, Employees and other Stakeholders, 

The consolidation of the business model implemented between 2020-2023 was extended 

to 2024, resulting in unique results, with this year being the institution's third best.  

As presented in the previous financial year, the strategy developed and subsequently 

implemented was based on a corporate identity and common work culture, reflected in a 

substantive change in the Governance model, adopting a fluid organizational structure that 

tends to be horizontal rather than traditional and hierarchical, based on open 

communication premises that support transparent and participatory management forums. 

The sustainable results demonstrate the merits of the bank's positioning and business 

model, including high solvency levels, a high return on assets and equity, high liquidity levels 

and a low loss ratio in the loan portfolio. 

Throughout 2024, the institution remained true to its ambition of being the international 

bank that knows Cabo Verde best. We began carrying out our activities adopting a “from 

where we are to the world” perspective, while remaining committed to the development of 

Human Capital as our main distinguishing factor. We continue to see our People, 

predominantly young professionals, taking on Leadership roles and asserting themselves 

through the Value of their dedication and work, developing more skills, knowledge and 

experience, so that the team can continue to support the position of a major economic 

player, with the capacity to do “what hasn't been done yet” and thus be able to translate 

more and better value - “Doing Things Differently, to Make a Difference.” 

We've continued to grow, supported by an even more stable and diversified financing 

structure, which corresponds to an asset composition capable of offering a higher risk-

adjusted return, both in absolute and relative terms in relation to comparables, reflected in 

a CVE 393 million net profit, translating into a Return on Assets and on Equity of 1.10% and 

13.25%, respectively. This result is particularly important because it is backed up by high 

solvency and liquidity levels, which stood at 55.4% (CET1) and 276% (LCR), extremely 

comfortable levels for continuing to develop the institution going forward, as well as a low 

loss ratio in the loan portfolio, which continues to grow steadily but prudently, reflected in 

the low loss ratio (0.55%), based on proactive portfolio management, which is expected to 
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continue to ensure unique customer monitoring, a decisive factor in recovering non-

performing loans. 

In a bid to continuously improve, following the alignment of our Sustainability and Social 

Responsibility Policy with the United Nations (“UN”) Sustainable Development Goals, we 

were the first financial institution in Cabo Verde to join the UN Global Compact, and we are 

currently involved in the Fast Forward program to further accelerate our initiatives and their 

results. 

In this 4-year period, through relevant cooperation with the most diverse and honorable 

institutions, which, with principles and values that are compatible with ours, dedicate 

themselves to such excellent causes, we have managed to touch approximately 70,000 

lives. 

We remain the most active and innovative player in the capital market, having been given 

the following distinctions by the Cabo Verde Stock Exchange: (i) Innovation in the Capital 

Market 2023, (ii) Issuer 2023, (iii) Gold Broker Operator 2023, Stock Operator 2023 - 

Primary Market (Corporate and Municipal), (iv) (iv) Blu-X Issuer 2023, Blu-X Operator 2023, 

with such awards resulting from the issue of the first public Blue and Green Bond in Cabo 

Verde, with the participation of the United Nations Development Program (“UNDP”) and the 

Joint SDG Fund, called “iib Marine and Ocean-based Blue Bond” and “iib Renewable and 

Energy-Efficiency Green Bond,” as well as the second series of “Credit Linked Notes - iib 

PRAE - Program for Restructuring and Supporting the Economy.” 

The results achieved over the last four years now offer a range of possibilities for 

shareholders and the most important stakeholders, with iibCV boasting a structure capable 

of seeking growth from asset origination given its extremely high liquidity and solvency 

position, going public with a view to joining forces with strategic shareholding partners who 

share the same vision, principles and values, to develop new projects relating to mergers 

and acquisitions and even potential geographical expansions, given the  accommodating 

position of its structure and size of the capital accumulated in recent years, among other 

possibilities, which, based on the work of a focused and dedicated team, have been 

designed to allow for new possible horizons going forward.  

These goals are to be pursued with a view to a new management approach, in order to 

lead the institution to the new challenges and opportunities that the future may bring. 

Thank you very much!   

The Executive Board,!  
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2.! The Bank 
 
Intercontinental Investment Bank, S.A. (iibCV) (formerly known as International Investment 

Bank) started operating in the Cabo Verdean market in July 2010, as a financial subsidiary 

fully owned by Novo Banco, in Portugal. 

On July 11, 2018, as part of its acquisition strategy, iibGroup Holding WLL (“iibGroup”) 

acquired 90% of the Bank's capital, with Novo Banco remaining as a reference shareholder 

over the remaining capital, as well as a privileged institutional correspondent, a status it still 

holds today, despite having sold its stake to iibGroup, which now holds 100% of iibCV. 

iibCV is made up of a dynamic and highly qualified team, committed to consolidating its 

position as a leading bank in attracting talent, developing human capital and creating value 

from economic and financial flows. With a strategic vision, the bank is strengthening its 

operations with Financial Institutions, Companies and Individuals, connecting Cabo Verde 

and the West African region to the global market. 

2.1.!Share Capital and Shareholder Structure 

Intercontinental Investment Bank, S.A. (iibCV) has a share capital of CVE 1,433,000,000 

(one billion, four hundred and thirty-three million escudos), represented by 1,433,000 

shares, with a par value of CVE 1,000 (one thousand escudos) each. 

 

The current composition of the institution's shareholder structure is as follows: 

Shareholder Structure  
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

Description

iib Mauritius Holdings

Total

Nº of Shares

1 433 000

1 433 000

Amount

1 433 000 000

1 433 000 000

%

100%

100%

(Values expressed in thousands of escudos)
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2.2.!Governing Bodies 

The by-laws of Intercontinental Investment Bank (iibCV) provide for a corporate governance 

structure that includes a number of bodies with specific responsibilities, namely the General 

Meeting, Executive Board, Executive Committee and Audit Committee. The composition of 

each body is, therefore, as follows: 

General Meeting 
Chairman 

José Luís Andrade 

Secretary 
Dina Haikel 

Executive Board 

The Executive Board composed of seven members, five permanent and two alternate 

members. 

Chairman 
Sohail Sultan  

Members 

Syed Khurshid Husain 

Erda Gercek (Independent) 

Francisco José Mairos Ferreira (until June 30th) 

José Alberto Monteiro Soares (until April 30th) 

Joseph Carasso Júnior (as of July 1st) 

Aïcha Paula Alfama Correia (as of May 1st) 

Manuel António Gonçalves Fernandes (as of May 1st) 

Elsa Almada (Alternate) 

Dina Haikel (Alternate) 

Executive Committee 
The Executive Committee is composed of three members. 

Chairman 

Francisco José Mairos Ferreira (until June 30th) 

Joseph Carasso Júnior (as of July 1st) 

!
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Members 

José Alberto Monteiro Soares (until April 30th) 

Aïcha Paula Alfama Correia (as of May 1st) 

Manuel António Gonçalves Fernandes (as of May 1st) 

Audit Committee 
The Audit Committee is composed of five members, three permanent and two alternate 

members. 

Chairman 
Ildo Adalberto Lima – Chairman 

Members 

Eunérlia Sousa Freitas  

Nair Cecília Pereira da Silva  

Alternates 
Alexandre Elísio Moreno Ferreira Querido  

Afrodite Leocádia de Sousa Reis Borges Monteiro  

 

2.3.!Organizational Structure  

iibCV operates through thirteen (13) departments, including two business areas which, 

across the board, manage its day-to-day activities. It also has a Branch and two Customer 

Service Offices that are strategically located, offering continuous support to its network of 

customers, both nationally and internationally. 
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Departments and Central Services 
 

 
 
!
Departamento Comercial 

!

2.4.!Geographical Presence, Distribution Network and Facilities 

Intercontinental Investment Bank, S.A. (iibCV) has its registered office at Av. Cidade de 

Lisboa, Praia (Santiago Island), where its central services and Head Office business unit are 

located.  

The Bank also operates Customer Service Offices in Mindelo (S. Vicente Island) and 

Espargos (Sal Island), bringing it closer to the market and expanding its range of unique 

products and services throughout the country.  

 

Financial Institutions and Markets

Human Capital

Overall Risk

Information Technology

Credit Recovery

Accounting

Compliance

Operations

Internal Audit

Legal

Management Control

Marketing

Aïcha Correia(1) / Eder Monteiro(2)

Leida Semedo

Elsa Almada

Hugo Rocha

Carla Melício

Lenira Monteiro

Karin Barros

Leila Carvalho

Edson Reis

Djasmin Ferreira

Hermann Tavares

Nelson Leocádio
(1) Until 30th April | (2) From 13th May onwards

Corporate South

Corporate North

Private

Praia Branch

Espargos Service Station

Mindelo Service Station

Giselle Tolentino

Naldina Lima

Félix Gomes

Karine Moreno

Naldina Lima

Naldina Lima
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2.5.!Capital Humano e Responsabilidade Social 

2.5.1.!Capital Humano 

Human capital has been one of the fundamental pillars of iibCV’s 

continuous success, given its primary goal is to be the best bank for its 

people and to have professionals who are committed and capable of 

providing the best service to society, customers and shareholders.  

For the fourth year running, iibCV's commitment to excellence in the 

workplace was recognized by its employees through an anonymous survey conducted by 

an independent company, having been distinguished as a Great Place to Work. The 

commitment to maintaining this certification is reflected in iibCV's constant dedication to its 

employees’ well-being, inclusion and active participation. This proactive approach has 

resulted in the certification being renewed, reaching a remarkable 93% satisfaction rate in 

2024, compared to 98% in 2023, 93% in 2022 and 85% in 2021.  

In terms of Training and Development, more than 2,000 hours of training were provided in 

2024 (2023: more than 1,000 hours), both online and in person, benefiting all Departments 

and contributing to better develop the individual and collective skills of the Bank's 

employees. This investment in knowledge and qualifications not only contributes to the 

team's excellent performance, but also reinforces iibCV's commitment to creating 

opportunities for professional growth and advancement. The Bank is committed to 

continuous training for its staff, with the aim of consolidating the foundations for a highly 

qualified team that is adaptable and ready to face the challenges of the banking sector with 

excellence. 
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Human Resources Structure as at 12-31-2024 and 12-31-2023 
 

 

2.5.2.!Sustentabilidade e Responsabilidade Social 

The Sustainability and Social Responsibility Policy was initiated in 2020, under the motto "6 

months, 6 causes," with the direct participation of employees in determining and indicating 

social projects to benefit.  

In 2024, iibCV remained committed to Sustainability and Social Responsibility, attaching 

the same strategic importance to these areas as in previous years. iibCV believes that 

sustainability is an essential factor in creating long-term value, guiding decisions and 

initiatives with a focus on positively impacting the community, its customers and employees. 

With an innovative and constantly evolving approach, iibCV has bolstered and expanded 

its actions, promoting projects and partnerships that contribute to a more sustainable 

future. In 2024, initiatives focused on three fundamental pillars: 

 

 Education, by supporting academic and professional development, 

promoting access to learning opportunities and training. 

!

!!"

#$#%

%!"

%&

%'"

!&"

#$#(

%)

*+"

##"

#$#%

%&

*$"

($"

#$#(

%)

#$#%

+$"

#$"

%&

')"

+%"

#$#(

%)

Intercontinental Investment Bank S.A.
Av. Cidade de Lisboa, C.P. 35, Praia - Santiago - Cabo Verde.
NIF 261973240, registada e matriculada na conservatória do Registo Comercial da Praia com nº 3076

+238 260 2626
iibanks.com/westafrica

13



!

!

!

Health and Well-being, by ensuring access to healthcare, financial 

protection and quality of life for our employees and the community. 

!

 Environment,!by investing in sustainable solutions and responsible practices 

that minimize the environmental impact of our operations and help preserve 

natural resources. 

!

O IibCV is part of the United Nations Global Compact, an international initiative that urges 

companies to adopt universal principles in the areas of human rights, labor, the environment 

and anti-corruption. They commit to incorporating these principles into their daily 

operations, promoting responsible business practices and contributing to a more 

sustainable and equitable world.   

As part of this engagement, the Bank participates in the SDG Ambition program, an initiative 

devoted to driving progress towards the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals 

(SDGs). This participation demonstrates the Bank's firm commitment to aligning its 

strategies with global efforts to address society's most pressing challenges. 

 

 

 

It is important to note that iibCV aims to stand out as a sustainable financial institution, 

committed to all its stakeholders. This commitment is reflected not only in its actions, but 

also in its transparency and accountability, thus reinforcing its position as a socially 

responsible bank. 

! !
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3.! Economic Environment 2024 
 
3.1.! International Environment 

As presented in the October 22, 2024 “World Economic Outlook” report, the International 

Monetary Fund (IMF) kept its global economic growth forecast at 3.2% for both 2024 and 

2025. This growth level indicates a pattern of stability, albeit below the expansion rates seen 

in the previous decade. 

One of the main highlights of the report is the slowdown in global inflation. According to 

IMF estimates, global inflation fell from 6.7% in 2023 to 5.7% in 2024, with a further drop 

to 4.3% in 2025. This trend reflects the effect of the restrictive monetary policies adopted 

by various central banks, which have sought to contain price rises over the last few years. 

Energy cost stabilization and global supply chain normalization have also helped to reduce 

inflationary pressures. 

Despite the prospects for relatively stable growth and the downward trend in inflation, the 

IMF warns of structural challenges that could negatively impact the global economy in the 

medium term. Among the main risk factors are: 

Increasing protectionism: The proliferation of restrictive trade measures by various 

countries could hinder the global flow of goods and services, jeopardizing international 

trade growth and reducing investment opportunities. 

Population aging: Declining birth rates and aging populations in advanced and emerging 

economies impose significant challenges for labor markets and pension systems, reducing 

long-term growth potential. 

Reduced investment: Economic uncertainty, coupled with higher financing costs due to 

restrictive interest rates, has led to less dynamism in productive investments, limiting the 

capacity for economic expansion. 

Slowdown in the Chinese economy: China, which has been one of the engines of 

global growth in recent decades, is facing internal challenges, such as a crisis in the real 

estate sector and the transition to a growth model based more on domestic consumption, 

which could affect its economic performance and impact other emerging markets. 

Geopolitical tensions: Regional conflicts, trade disputes and political instabilities continue 

to pose significant risks to the global economy. Uncertainty regarding supply chains and 

the possibility of new economic sanctions between major powers are factors that can 

introduce volatility into the markets. 
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Against this backdrop, the IMF reinforces the importance of balanced economic policies 

that reconcile the need to stimulate growth with maintaining financial stability. The institution 

also highlights the role of policymakers and investors in constantly monitoring economic 

and geopolitical developments, in order to adapt their strategies as necessary. 

In conclusion, the economic projections for 2024 and 2025 indicate moderate growth and 

progressive disinflation. However, significant risks require increased attention from 

economic agents to mitigate adverse impacts and ensure a resilient global economy in the 

coming years. 

 

3.2.!Domestic Environment 

Cabo Verde's economy has shown resilience in the face of recent global challenges. In 

2023, the country enjoyed a 5.1% economic growth, driven mainly by the tourism sector.  

For 2024, projections point to a 6.1% growth, sustained by service exports and buoyant 

private consumption. In 2025, the forecast is for a 5.6% growth, reflecting a consolidated 

economic recovery and a slight moderation compared to the previous year. This growth will 

be supported by continued solid performance in tourism, investments in infrastructure and 

advances in economic diversification.  

Inflation has been on a downward trend in Cabo Verde. In 2024, the average annual inflation 

rate was 1%, a significant reduction on previous years. For 2025, inflation is expected to 

continue to fall, standing at around 0.8%. This trend reflects the moderation of international 

food prices and the fall in oil prices. 

The fiscal deficit has been on a downward trend. In 2023, the deficit was 2.7% of GDP, 

with expectations of a decrease to 2.1% in 2025, resulting from fiscal consolidation 

measures, an increase in tax revenue and the privatization of state-owned companies. 

In the medium term, private consumption, tourism investment and the blue economy are 

expected to continue to be pillars of economic growth. Structural reforms, such as digitizing 

the economy, improving the business environment and economic diversification, will be 

crucial to ensuring a solid foundation for long-term sustainable growth. 

!! !
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4.! Summary of Activities  

4.1.!Business Strategy and Model 

By implementing an organizational culture based on continuous development, iibCV saw 

an improvement in the vast majority of Key Activity Indicators, becoming a solid 

organization, one that is conveniently prepared to face the most demanding challenges, as 

well as economic, competitiveness and market constraints. 

The implementation of the strategy undertaken will continue to aim at efficiently addressing 

the challenging limitations prevailing in the surrounding context, with emphasis on 

continuously strengthening organizational capabilities in terms of internal control and 

management; growing number of customers and resources in core business segments 

with the greatest competitive advantage; the quality of asset allocation with the Bank's 

consolidation as one of the economy's main incremental funders; continuing to make 

record investment in the training of our Human Capital; and, not least, continuing to 

contribute to the community we are a part of, through concrete actions that reflect our 

Sustainability and Social Responsibility Policy. 

 

!!
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4.2.! Summary of Activities 

FY 2024, as expected, was a year of stabilization for iibCV, with a reduction in its balance 

sheet (-14%), although this negative performance had no impact on the value of risk-

weighted assets, while at the same time it was possible to maintain a good profitability level, 

reflecting an excellent net profit (CVE 393 million; FY 2023: CVE 671 million).  

The efficiency (45.85%), profitability (13%), and solvency (55.4%) indicators reflect a 

meritoriously solid operating structure, which embodies comfort, especially appreciated by 

our stakeholders, given the uncertainty and high perceived risk in the market. 

 

2022

2023

2024

 MoU - Academic Merit Scholarships
 MoU - CV Post Office & 1st Kiosk in S. 

Vicente                                   
 Bank of Cape Verde Advisory Board 

Member                                               
 Head of Compliance, President the 

Sub-Committee of COFGMS    
 Solidarity Indexed Term Deposit & 

Social Bond – SOS Children’s Villages                   
 Largest Issuance - iib 3S Senior Bond 

Series C
 Great Place To Work Certified 2022
 MoU - Ministry of Sea
 Largest Transactions Volume in CV 

Exchange
 MoU - CV Exchange
 MoU - Ministry of Agriculture
 1st Derivative Issuance - CREDIT 

LINKED NOTES

 iib Blue Bonds Dual Listing - Luxem-
bourg Sustainable Stock Exchange

 Great Place To Work Certified 2023
 iib Blue Bonds - iib Marine and 

Ocean-Based Blue Bonds
 Academic Excellence Incentive 

Program (2nd Edition)
 MoU - Angolan Securities Exchange
 BVC - Issuer Award 2022
 BVC - Primary Market (Corporate and 

Municipal) Operator Award 2022
 BVC - Gold Broker Operator Award 

2022
 iib Green Bonds - iib Renewable and 

Energy-Efficiency Green Bond
 ISO 31000:2018 Certification
 BVC - Innovation in Capital Markets 

Award 2022
 BVC - Primary Market (Global) 

Operator Award 2022
 iib Business Breakfast (1st and 2nd 

Edition)
 MoU - African CAUCUS 2023
 2nd Derivative Issuance - CREDIT 

LINKED NOTES
 Adherence to the United Nations 

Global Compact Principles

 iib Business Breakfast (Presentation 
of Results)

 MoU - iibCV and the Professional 
Association of Microfinance Institutions 
CV

 BVC -  Issuer Award 2023
 BVC - Innovation in Capital Markets 

Award 2023
 BVC - Primary Market (Corporate and 

Municipal) Operator Award 2023
 BVC - Gold Broker Operator Award 

2023
 BVC - Issuer Blu-X Award 2023
 BVC - Operator Blu-X  Awards 2023
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iibCV's performance included a 34% reduction in banking income, impacted by the average 

increase in funding costs, contrasted with efficient balance sheet management, with a 

holistic approach and focused on generating risk-adjusted returns at adequate levels, 

leading noninterest income to remain above the market average. As a contributing variable, 

net interest income saw its share increase from 87% of banking income in 2023 to 92%, 

showing solid revenue sources.  

The loan portfolio volume reached CVE 6.47 billion, with the non-performing loan (NPL) ratio 

increasing slightly to 0.55%, maintaining a continuous proximity and customer behaviour 

understanding approach, along with a comfortable recognition of the 109.77% expected 

loss (impairment) of NPLs, which provides an accommodative framework in view of a 

potential deterioration of future macroeconomic conditions. 

Keeping the focus on people, iibCV remained strongly committed to employee training, with 

more than 2000 hours provided, while at the same time reiterating its commitment to the 

community, through actions resulting from its Sustainability and Social Responsibility Policy, 

which is a crucial component of an institutional identity that is now inseparable from it. 

Thus, 2024 was a year of important achievements, reflecting the team's determination, 

motivation and dynamism in building an increasingly solid bank. Through processes 

supported by continuous improvement, we reinforced our ability to generate more and 

better value for our customers and other stakeholders.! !
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5.! Credit Risk Analysis  
5.1.!Loan Portfolio 

In FY 2024, the Bank carried out its activities while rigorously controlling and monitoring 

credit risk appetite. 

The Bank closed the year with a loan portfolio of CVE 6.58 billion, reflecting a 17.5% 

decrease, impacted by the termination of some loan operations and changes in operations. 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!
!

 

 

 

 

 

The following graph shows the annual change in the loan portfolio, in terms of new 

agreements, amortizations and other changes that occurred during 2024, as well as total 

loans settled, and the amount written off from the loan portfolio. Note that no loans were 

written off during the year. 

Developments in the loan portfolio, per disbursement, from 12-31-2023 to 12-
31-2024 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(

!
O The amount indicated as a reduction in the loan portfolio was largely due to full payment 

of installments owed by customers and short-term loans which, due to their nature, fell due 

before the end of the year. 

31.12.2024 31.12.2023 Variação

Customer Loans 6 468 107 7 378 477 -12,3%
Corporate 5 829 104 6 745 755 -13,6%
Individuals 639 003 632 722 1,0%

Off balance sheet 113 953 599 666 -81,0%

Total 6 582 060 7 978 143 -17,5%

-12%

New
Operations

Credit
Deducted

Amortization/
Other Reductions

Credit

2023 2024

7 378.5

805.7

1 716.1

6 468.1
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Developments in the loan portfolio, per subscription, from 12-31-2023 to 12-
31-2024 
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Off-balance sheet operations (bank guarantees and documentary credit) showed a 

decrease, due to the delivery and completion of works associated with bank guarantees, 

which led to a larger volume of settlements than new operations.  

The table below shows the loan portfolio composition, by operation type and by customer 

type: 

 

Portfolio distribution by operation type as at 12-31-2024 and as at 12-31-2023(
!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
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!
!

Overall, most of the loans were given to local economic agents, including state-owned 

companies, small, medium and large companies and individuals, accounting for a total of 

90% of the portfolio. 

Amount % Amount % ! abs. % !

Corporate 5 829 104 90,1% 6 745 755 91,4% -916 651 -13,6%
Medium to long Term Financing 4 920 289 76,1% 5 280 057 71,6% -359 768 -6,8%
Short Term Financing 622 984 9,6% 1 142 572 15,5% -519 588 -45,5%
Pledged Current Account/Overdraft 285 615 4,4% 322 987 4,4% -37 372 -11,6%
Other 216 0,0% 139 0,0% 77 54,9%
Individuals 639 003 9,9% 632 722 8,6% 6 281 1,0%
Mortage Loans 550 209 8,5% 561 078 7,6% -10 869 -1,9%
Consumer 88 794 1,4% 71 644 1,0% 17 150 23,9%
Loans 6 468 107 98,3% 7 378 477 92% -910 370 -12,3%

Off-balance 113 953 1,7% 599 666 8% -485 713 -81,0%
Bank Guarantees 45 718 0,7% 599 666 8% -553 948 -92,4%
Documentary Credit 68 235 1,0% -                 0,0% 68 235 n/a

Total 6 582 060 100% 7 978 143 100% -1 396 083 -17,5%

31.12.2024 31.12.2023 Change

-81%

New
Operations

Amortization/
Settlement

Non-Patrimonial

2023 2024

599 666

73 577

559 290

113 953
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The main credit counterparties are companies in the Transportation and Communications 

sector, which account for 75% of the total loan portfolio. Exposure to credit concentration 

risk is mitigated by solid guarantee and collateral instruments. 

Loan Portfolio Distribution as at 12-31-2024 and as at 12-31-2023 
!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
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5.2.!Credit Risk Analysis and Management 

Credit Risk is the possibility of financial losses arising from default or deterioration in the 

credit quality of a customer or counterparty, in relation to contractual obligations established 

with the Bank as part of its lending activities.  

Credit risk management is referenced in practices, processes and procedures to identify 

and measure the risks embedded in individual operations and based on the loan portfolio.  

The Risk Management Department is responsible for the entire credit management cycle, 

including analysis of new operations, review of already granted loans, assessment of new 

products, monitoring of customers considered to be "high risk," timely identification of 

customers’ financial difficulties, analysis of the impact of the economic environment on 

portfolio quality, and adequacy and control of guarantees received from customers, with a 

view to ensuring adequate and efficient decision-making and preserving loan portfolio 

quality. 

In carrying out the risk control function, the Department ensures the operation of the 

following principles and determinations:  

•! Independence of the business areas and Board, especially with regard to analysis 

and issuance of risk opinions; 

Falling due Overdue Falling due Overdue

By segment 6 426 093         42 013           4 591 970         2 786 507      
Corporate 5 816 507         12 597           3 984 902         2 760 853      
Individuals 609 586            29 416           607 069            25 654           

By Activity Sector 6 426 093         42 013           4 591 970         2 786 507      
Transportation and Communications 4 211 205         -                  2 207 293         2 500 116      
Trade and services 1 306 768         7 831             1 327 928         7 976             
Hospitality and food service 177 494            327                258 817            252 761         
Construction and Public Works -                     4 440             25 291              -                  
Industry 121 040            -                  165 572            -                  
Housing 521 461            28 747           538 422            22 656           
Consumption 88 125              669                68 647              2 997             
By Maturity 6 426 093         42 013           4 591 970         2 786 507      
Medium and long term 5 769 150         36 847           3 443 869         2 786 234      
Short-term 656 943            5 166             1 148 101         273                
loan impairment/portfolio coverage 39 050              93% 52 661              2%

31.12.2024 31.12.2023
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•! Ensuring that all credit decisions follow a formal approval process; 

•! Ensuring compliance with Credit Policies and Powers; 

•! Ensuring that the Committees' structure and functioning are maintained; 

•! Enhancing and implementing actions to improve risk control; 

•! Ensuring a solid, consistent and integrated risk culture in view of all existing risks, in 

all the Bank's activities;  

•! Reporting information in a timely manner; and 

•! Providing training in order to disseminate a risk identification and prevention culture 

to all areas of the Bank. 

The Bank's Risk Governance model involves the active participation of Board members in 

making decisions on credit operations. All credit operations must be previously approved 

by the Credit Committee, in which the Executive Committee participates, and assessed by 

the other Board members, when applicable: 

Credit Committee: responsible for approving loans and monitoring overdue loans; 

Executive Committee: periodically monitors credit management activities; 

Executive Board: the highest credit decision-making body. 

Decision-making on credit and maximum levels allowed for exposure to credit risk, including 

counterparty risk, for both the loan and trading/investment portfolios, are established in the 

credit powers and risk appetite policies. 

Risk is measured through quarterly reports, monitoring of compliance with the limits set and 

the highest risk concentrations, stress tests, and assessment of the impacts of possible 

adverse scenarios. 

Annually, the Audit and Banking Supervision entities (Banco de Cabo Verde) carry out 

independent verification of the Banks’ credit processes and Risk Management System, in 

accordance with international practices and the regulatory body. 

When assessing loan portfolio risk, iibCV analyses a number of essential factors to ensure 

their quality and sustainability. These include assessing counterparties' credit risk, the 

coverage and collateral of operations (ability to recover debts), compliance with credit 

approval and contracting policies and procedures, as well as the quality of credit information 

and reports. 

In addition, it considers customer exposure in the overall credit system, renegotiation 

conditions, impairment and capital costs, as well as qualitative information on customers 

and other indicators relevant to maintaining the portfolio's soundness. 
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The Bank recorded a total of CVE 35.58 million (2023: 30.27 million) in non-performing 

loans (more than 90 days in arrears), which resulted in a non-performing loan ratio of 0.55% 

(2023: 0.41%). 

Age of non-performing loans 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!
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Da relação dos créditos em 

incumprimento, a significativa maioria 

(73%) acomoda-se no período impactado 

pela pandemia do covid-19, ou seja, 

entre 2020 e meados de 2022.

Time distribution of non-performing loans, per product as at 12-31-2024 
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Mortgage loans account for 64% of total non-performing loans, with five customers in 

default. These loans are secured by property mortgages, with an average Loan-to-Value 

(LTV) ratio of 46%. 

Time distribution of non-performing loans, per product as at 12-31-2023 
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According to Banco de Cabo Verde’s Circular Letter no. 195/2018, credit at risk includes 

loan agreements that are overdue for at least 30 days and restructured loans, which 

account for about 51% (2023: 49.98%) of the gross loan portfolio.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Year Customer nº Amount % Accumulated
até 2022 6 25 976 73%

2023 2 6 141 17%
2024 4 3 460 10%
Total 12 35 576 100%

Loans Impairment Loans Impairment Loans Impairment Loans Impairment
Corporate 338                125              2 980          147           9 279        634            12 597 906
Mortage -                  -                -               -             22 656      227            22 656 227
Consumer 157                52                33               11             133           1                323 64
Total 495               177             3 013         158          32 068 862 35 576 1 197

Total> 90 days <= 180 days > 180 days <= 365 > 365 days

Loans Impairment Loans Impairment Loans Impairment Loans Impairment
Corporate -                  -                -               -             7 508 616 7 508 616
Mortage 4 322 43 -               -             18 335 183 22 656 227
Consumer -                  -                -               -             103 1 103 1
Total 4 322 43 -              -            25 946 800 30 267 843

> 90 days <= 180 days > 180 days <= 365 > 365 days Total
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Loan portfolio at risk as at 12-31-2024 and 12-31-2023 
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This increase in the credit at risk ratio essentially reflects the decrease in the loan portfolio, 

although restructured loans increased, causing a significant impact on the risk of overall 

exposure. 

Loan portfolio quality indicators as at 12-31-2024 and 12-31-2023 
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Every year, the Bank reviews the parameters and variables of the Impairment calculation 

model, ensuring its compliance with IFRS 9 recommendations. The calculation is reflected 

in costs, on a monthly basis, and covers all credit and off-balance sheet operations, 

including bank guarantees and documentary credit.  

Additionally, the Bank classifies credit operations based on default risk indicators, 

segmenting them into different risk categories (Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3), according 

to the evolution of credit quality and level of risk exposure.  

As a result of credit management processes and policies, the Bank has classified around 

39.6% of the total gross loan portfolio in the Performing risk category (Stage 1), reflecting 

the portfolio’s quality and continuous monitoring. 

Non-performing 
loans

Restructured 
loans

Credit at risk 
2024

Credit at risk 
2023

Variation 
2023/2022

Corporate 12 597 3 215 157 3 803 468 4 146 130 -8%
Mortage 22 656 16 316 81 640 43 593 87%
Consumer 323 1 121 20 070 9 737 106%
Total 35 576 3 232 594 3 905 178 4 199 460 -7%
% Global portfolio 0,55% 49,98% 60,38% 49,62% 22%

31.12.2024 31.12.2023 ! abs. ! %
Customer loans (gross) 6 468 107 7 378 477 -910 370 -12,3%
Loans written off from assets 208 789 208 789 0 0,0%
Overdue loans 35 576 30 267 5 309 17,5%
Restructured loans 3 232 594 26 951 3 205 643 11894,4%
At risk loans 3 905 178 4 199 460 -294 282 -7,0%
Loan portfolio impairment 39 050 52 661 -13 611 -25,8%
written off loans/customer loans 3,23% 2,83% 14,07%
Overdue loans/customer loans 0,55% 0,41% 34,08%
At-risk loans/Customer loans 60,38% 56,91% 6,08%
Portfolio impairment / Overdue loans 109,77% 173,99% -36,91%
Impairment of the portfolio/credit risk 1,00% 1,25% -20,26%
Portfolio Coverage (Portfolio Impairment/Customer Credit) 0,60% 0,71% -15,41%
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The loans classified as Stage 1 refer to customers in compliance with payment plans, with 

no signs of credit risk degradation compared to when they were initially granted. 

Loans with an installment in arrears (whether principal and/or interest) are classified in Stage 

2, affecting the customer's entire exposure. However, once the installments have been 

settled, stage 2 and 3 customers go through a cure period before they can be reclassified 

into a lower risk category. As a result of this procedure, 7.3% of the portfolio remains in the 

medium risk class (Stage 2). 

Assumptions for classification by Stages 
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Breaking down loan portfolio impairment by risk class indicates that Stage 3 customers, 

accounting for 53% of gross loans, generate 54% of total impairments. 

Impairment in the overall loan portfolio as at 12-31-2024 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
!

!
!

In contrast to the slight increase in the overdue loans and credit at risk ratios in relation to 

total loans, impairments decreased to CVE 39 million, substantially due to the improvement 

in customers' risk perception and the full amortization of some operations. 

Changes in loan portfolio impairment as at 12-31-2024 
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Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Regular loans       Restructured loans       Overdue for more than 90 days

      Overdue for more than 30 dias       Bankruptcy/insolvency
Assumptions       Blocked accounts       Collateral enforcement

      Return/Check usage Blocked       Other
      Other

      Amount of loans ! 2 562 929 471 248 3 433 931
      % of portfolio ! 39,6% 7,3% 53,1%

Credit Impairment Coverage Credit Impairment Coverage Credit Impairment Coverage
Credit operations 4 415 572 22 778 0,52% 2 052 535 16 272 0,79% 6 468 107 39 050 0,60%
Stage 1 1 025 112 3 752 0,4% 1 537 817 11 689 0,8% 2 562 929 15 441 0,6%
Stage 2 -            -             0,0% 471 248 2 498 0,5% 471 248 2 498 0,5%
Stage 3 3 390 460 19 026 0,6% 43 471 2 085 4,8% 3 433 931 21 111 0,6%

Off-balance -            -             -          113 953 168 0,1% 113 953 168 0,1%
Stage 1 -            -             -          113 953 168 0,1% 113 953 168 0,1%
Stage 2 -            -             -          -            -             0,0% -            -             0,0%
Stage 3 -            -             -          -            -             0,0% -            -             0,0%
Total 4 415 572 22 778 0,5% 2 166 488 16 440 0,8% 6 582 060 39 218 0,6%

Individual analysis Collective analysis Total

Collective analysis Individual analysis Total
Corporate  50 867 14 107 22 265  36 372 ( 14 495)
Individuals  1 794 2 165 513  2 678   884

 52 661  16 272  22 778  39 050 ( 13 611)

Segment
Impairment as at 

31.12.2023
Impairment as at 31.12.2024

Variation
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Minimum regulatory provisions are determined in accordance with Banco de Cabo Verde's 

procedures, as expressed in Notice no. 4/2006, which establishes the parameters for 

determining the regulatory provision rates to be applied to each individual exposure. 

5(6(51./0(
!

!
!

The equivalent of 10% of the loan portfolio is classified in the default risk class A and 

accounts for 38% of total regulatory provisions. 

Loan Portfolio Distribution and provisions per risk class, as at 12-31-2024 
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Regulatory Provisions versus Impairment 
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Class ! A B C D E

Weighting ! 1% 5% 25% 50% 100%

0-6m 6-24m 24-48m 48-78m >78m

0-6m 6-15m 15-30m 30-60m >60m

0-3m 3-6m 6-12m 12-24m >24m

0-1m 1-3m 3-6m 6-12m >12m

Type of Guarantee "

Mortgages for Owner-occupied Housing

Mortgaged or Non-Mortgaged, for Investment

Real and personal

No guarantee

A B-C D-E
1% [5% -25%] [50% -100%]

M/L Term Financing 4 920 289  1 056  1 739  1 502  4 297  25 127  20 830 
Mortgage loans  550 209   386  2 004  5 592  7 982   622 ( 7 360)
Other loans  997 610  5 249   199   115  5 563  13 301  7 738 
Total 6 468 107 6 691 3 941 7 209 17 842 39 050 21 208

Risk class and % Provisions Difference betwen 
impairment and 

provisionsCredit operations Loan amount Total 
Provisions

Total 
Impairment

17 842

21 208 39 050

Provisions ImpairmentsGap

54%
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6.! Analysis of Developments in Activities  

6.1.!Balance Sheet 

At the end of 2024, iibCV’s balance sheet reached an overall amount of CVE 35.76 billion, 

which is 14% lower than the CVE 41.35 billion seen at the end of the previous year. 

Financial assets and liabilities continue to be predominant in iibCV’s balance sheet, with a 

weight of 84% (2023: 86%) and 90% (2023: 91%), respectively, in its composition at the 

end of 2024. 

6.1.1.!Assets 

Asset Composition 

 

As at December 31, 2024, gross investment in fixed assets amounted to CVE 645 million 

(2023: CVE 652 million), with accumulated amortization and impairments amounting to CVE 

467 million, equivalent to approximately 72% of the value of those same assets.  

Overall, the Bank's net fixed assets account for 0.5% of its total net assets, reflecting, in 

addition to regular amortizations, the effect of impairment recorded in intangible assets 

(CVE 4.8 million) to cover the risks associated with their valuation at market prices). 

Investments in the domestic market, namely the acquisition of Treasury securities and 

Interbank Market operations, are combined with investments made in the international 

12.0%

65.6%

18.0% 4
.4

%

13.1%

63.5%

18.2%

5
.2

%

2024 2023

Monetary Applications Financial Investments Credit Other Assets and Fixed Assets
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market, namely through investments in financial institutions, which helps to mitigate various 

types of risk (interest rate, foreign exchange and liquidity risks). 

Interest-bearing Assets  
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1) Excludes interest and impairments 

The portfolio of interest-bearing assets, or those generating income that can be determined 

on their contract date (fixed or variable rates), saw a 14% reduction. 

6.1.2.!Liabilities 

iibCV's liabilities are made up, for the most part, of customer funds, accounting for around 

55% of the total, in line with the proportion seen at the end of 2023 (55%). This performance 

reflects the Bank’s stability and diversification of funding sources. 

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Investments in Other Financial Institutions 8 088 727 7 067 795 

Very Short-Term Investments at Banco of Cabo Verde 1 460 000 5 080 000 

Short-Term Investments at Banco of Cabo Verde  -  99 384 

Gross loans to Clients 6 468 106 7 378 477 

Assets under repurchase agreement 1 128 533 1 040 499 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 3 811 508 3 578 673 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income 9 158 521 11 157 434 
Total Remunerated Assets(1)

30 115 395 35 402 263

Net Assets 35 760 603 41 351 896

Remunerated Assets/Net Assets 84% 86%
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Financing Structure  

 

Market funds, made up of deposits of other financial institutions and central banks, fell by 

14%, accounting for 45% of total liabilities. In absolute terms, the funds in this segment 

totaled CVE 14.6 billion (2023: CVE 16,8 billion) at the end of 2024, representing a reduction 

in liabilities emphasized by the stabilization of the new business model being implemented. 

With regard to own funds, the Bank closed the year with a net worth of CVE 3.33 billion, 

equivalent to 9.3% of its funding structure, which is CVE 35.8 billion (2023: 7.2% of CVE 

41.4 billion).  

Customer funds enjoyed a substantial reduction in 2024, totaling CVE 17.5 billion (2023: 

CVE 20.9 billion).  

Time deposits fell by 12% in relation to 2023, accounting for 39% of the overall deposit 

portfolio, while the overall volume of demand deposits reduced by 21%. Customer funds, 

in the form of liabilities represented by securities, amounted to CVE 3.64 billion (2023: CVE 

3.98 billion), reflecting the maturity of securities in the portfolio.   

Totaling CVE 2.58 billion, non-resident customers' funds fell by 70%, while residents' funds 

rose by 52%, with a balance of CVE 7.91 billion. Emigrant customers' funds, with a total 

value of CVE 135 million, increased by 3.85%. 

 

2024 2023

40.7%

50.6%

1.5
%

7.2%

40.7%

48.9%

1.1%

9.3%

Market Resources Customer Funds Other Liabilities Shareholders' Equity
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Customer Activity: Loans and Deposits in the Balance Sheet Structure  

 
! !
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7.! Income, Financial and Prudential Ratios  

7.1.!Income!

In a global context marked by technological transition, high inflation and geopolitical 

tensions, emerging economies have faced additional challenges, adopting measures to 

mitigate the impacts on the local economy, such as inflation, increase in debt costs and 

living costs. 

In this context, iibCV enhanced its strategy of proximity and support to the national 

economy, maintaining a balance between asset quality and meeting customer needs. As a 

result, the Bank stabilized its results and indicators compared to the same period in the 

previous year. 

Income Statement as at 12-31-2024 
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The financial result fell over the course of the year and was 29% lower than in the previous 

year. This performance mainly reflects the average growth in financing costs which, in 

absolute terms, outstripped the pace of growth in interest income. 

With an approach of proximity to the market, although fee and commission income rose by 

216% in relation to 2023, Commercial Banking Income stood at CVE 729 million, reflecting 

a year-over-year reduction of 24% (2023: CVE 971 million).  

Income from foreign currency transactions and other operating income decreased by 99% 

in relation to 2023.  
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Banking Income amounted to CVE 730 million in 2024, reflecting a 34% decrease (2023: 

CVE 1.1 billion). 

Operating Income amounted to CVE 396 million (2023: CVE 788 million), demonstrating 

the Bank's ability to be resilient and to generate revenue from its direct activities that is 

above its operating costs, consolidating its sustainability. 

iibCV remains committed to investing in a qualified team of employees, reflected in the 

increase in the number and quality of professionals to support business growth. As a result, 

staff costs increased by 6%.  

Along the same lines, administrative costs grew by around 13%, negatively impacting 

operating income.  

Consequently, operating costs stood at CVE 335 million, which is 8% higher than in 2023, 

maintaining the overall structure, where staff costs account for 45% and administrative 

costs 43%. Depreciation and amortization for the year account for the remaining amount. 

Net income for the year amounted to CVE 393 million (2023: CVE 671 million), having been 

directly impacted by the previously mentioned factors. 

Income Indicators as at 12-31-2024 
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7.2.! Financial Ratios 

The financial ratios achieved in 2024 are the result of the implemented strategy, which 

translated into a mitigating effect on the bank’s income, along with a higher risk-adjusted 

return. 
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Loan-to-Deposit Ratio 

The loan-to-deposit ratio (LtD) was higher than the figure for the previous year, standing at 

37%, as a result of the fact that the reduction in the customer funds portfolio was higher 

than that in the loan portfolio. 

Liquidity!

The Bank's overall liquidity level is high, favoring the generation of short-term and lower 

credit risk exposures, especially with a view to supporting the specific needs of the 

stakeholders' value chain, contributing to the optimization of risk/return in the asset 

structure. 

7.3.!Performance Ratios 
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Financial ratio analysis reveals a generalized improvement. 

 

Return on Equity (ROE) 

Average annual return on equity was 13.25% (2023: 29.92%), reflecting a lower net income 

than in the previous year.  

Return on Assets (ROA)  

Average annual return on assets was 1.10% (2023: 1.62%). 
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Cost-to-Income (CtI)  

The ratio that measures the Bank's efficiency showed an improvement over the previous 

year, decreasing 17.24 pp. to 45.85% (2023: 28.24%). 

7.4.!Prudential Ratios 

As supervisor and regulator of the national financial system, one of the missions of Banco 

de Cabo Verde (BCV) is to control financial institutions’ risks, regulated in prudential notices 

and technical instructions whose adoption and implementation are mandatory.  

The Bank’s primary goal is its economic and financial balance, achieving sustainable growth 

levels and contributing to financial system stability. In addition to complying with all 

regulatory requirements, the Bank has been adopting and implementing a number of 

complementary requirements, with higher levels of demand, based on the international 

financial system and in line with the best and most recent practices. 

Main Prudential Ratios 
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Thus, as at December 31, 2024, the Bank’s Equity stood at CVE 3.5 billion (2023: CVE 3.1 

billion), in compliance with Notice no. 03/2007, dated November 19, which establishes the 

criteria for its calculation. This amount remains above the minimum required by Banco de 

Cabo Verde, acting as a buffer for possible banking risks.  

In the same vein, Solvency risk was fully covered by Equity, with coverage above 55% 

(2023: 49%), significantly above the legal minimum required for commercial banks (12%), 

as stipulated by Notice no. 04/2007, dated February 25, 2008. 

With Equity at a comfortable level and a portfolio of net investment in tangible fixed assets 

of CVE 178 million (2023: CVE 201 million), the Bank has a fixed asset coverage ratio of 

900% (2023: 735%), in accordance with the technical instruction attached to BCV circular 

letter no. 238/2023.  

Mín. Limit 31/12/2024 31/12/2023 Variation
Equity 800 000      3 484 144      3 089 839   13%
Fixed Asset Coverage Ratio 100% 900% 735% 164,50pp
Government Securities 5% 66% 65% 1,65pp
Solvency Ratio 12% 55,37% 49,20% 6,17pp
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Notice no. 11/98, dated December 28, which regulates the Equity to net fixed assets ratio, 

determines that a bank's fixed assets must not exceed its Equity, that is, that the ratio 

should not be less than 100%.! !
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8.! Final Notes  

8.1.!Statement of Compliance on the Financial Information presented 

The members of the Executive Board of Intercontinental Investment Bank, S.A., declare 

that: 

!! The financial statements of Intercontinental Investment Bank, S.A. for the years ended 

December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 were prepared in accordance with 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as set out by Banco de Cabo Verde 

(BCV) in Notice no. 2/2007, dated February 25, 2008; 

!! To the best of its knowledge, the financial statements referred to in the previous 

paragraph provide a true and fair view of the assets and liabilities, the financial situation and 

the results of Intercontinental Investment Bank S.A., in accordance with the aforementioned 

Standards, and were subject to approval at the Executive Board meeting held on April 17, 

2025; 

!! The management report sets out the developments in the business, performance and 

financial position of Intercontinental Investment Bank, S.A. in FY 2024, and contains a 

description of the expected evolution of the company.  

8.2.!Proposed Appropriation of Profits 

Pursuant to its statutory powers, the Executive Board of Intercontinental Investment Bank, 

S.A. proposes to the General Meeting that the Income for the Year, profit amounting to CVE 

392,984,000 (Three hundred and ninety-two million, nine hundred and eighty-four thousand 

escudos), be allocated as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
!

! !

!

!

!

!

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Legal Reserve (10%)  39 298  67 119 
Other Reserves (90%)  353 686  604 072 
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period  392 984  671 191 
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II.! Financial Statements and Notes to the Accounts 
1.!Financial Statements 

Income Statement for the Years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 
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The notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

!

 

 

The Executive Committee  

!

!

!

"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""!

!

!

!

!

!

!

 

The Certified Accountant 

!

!

!

"""""""""""""""""""""""""!

Notas 31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Interests and similar income   5 1 290 002 1 358 731 
Interests and similar expenses   6 ( 615 351) ( 404 053)
Financial Margin  674 651 954 677
Services and commissions income   7  113 606 173 467
Services and commissions expenses   7 ( 59 503) ( 156 363)
Foreign exchange revaluation income   8  21 099  179 983 
Other operational result   9 ( 19 421) ( 53 088)
Banking Income  730 432 1 098 676
Costs with personnel   10 ( 151 919) ( 143 167)
Administrative costs   11 ( 144 965) ( 127 871)
Depreciation and amortisation 19 e 20 ( 38 004) ( 39 282)
Provisions net of annulments   26  13 390 ( 74 946)
Loan Impairment net of reversals and recoveries   17  13 510  39 104 
Other financial assets impairment net of reversals and recoveries   18 (  267) ( 1 946)
Other assets impairment net of reversals and recoveries 19, 20 e 22  3 940  17 650 
Income before taxes  426 117  768 219 
Taxes ( 33 133) ( 97 028)
   Current   21 ( 28 098) ( 88 271)
   Deferred   21 ( 5 035) ( 8 757)
Income after taxes  392 984  671 191 

Net Income for the year  392 984  671 191 
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Years ended December 31, 2024 

and 2023 
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(1) The balance recorded under comprehensive income refers to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss. 
The notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
!

!
!

The Executive Committee  

!

!

!

"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""!

!

!

!

!

!

!

 

 

The Certified Accountant 

!

!

!

"""""""""""""""""""""""""!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!
!
!

! !

31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Net income for the year  392 984  671 191 
Changes to fair value net of taxes(1) ( 42 326)  51 435 
Total of comprehensive income for the year  350 658  722 626 
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Balance sheet as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 
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!
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The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

!

The Executive Committee  

!

!

!

"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""!

!

!

The Certified Accountant 

!

!

!

"""""""""""""""""""""""""!

!

!

!

!

Notes 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Assets
Cash and deposits with central banks   12 1 005 316  817 943 
Deposits with other credit institutions   13 3 684 967 4 160 069 
Financial Assets held for trading  10 000  70 000 
Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss   14 3 865 307 3 608 086 
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income   15 9 227 060 11 167 887 
Placements with credit institutions   16 9 569 714 12 272 993 
Loan to customers (net)   17 6 514 236 7 431 368 
Assets under repurchase agreement   18 1 132 609 1 043 190 
Other tangible assets   19  166 665  198 718 
Intangible assets   20  11 752  12 328 
Current tax assets   21  90 491  68 102 
Deferred tax assets   21  23 758  5 612 
Other assets   22  458 728  495 600 
Total of Assets 35 760 603 41 351 896 

Liabilities
Funds with central banks   23 6 306 645 10 110 108 
Funds with other credit institutions   23 8 257 678 6 731 151 
Customer funds and other borrowings   24 13 853 268 16 946 025 
Liabilities represented by securities   25 3 637 669 3 980 682 
Provisions   26   168  77 208 
Current tax liabilities   21  28 098  120 425 
Deferred tax liabilities   21  18 552  - 
Subordinated liabilities   25  234 025  234 025 
Other liabilities   27  107 686  186 115 
Total of Liabilities 32 443 789 38 385 739 

Share Capital   28 1 433 000 1 433 000 
Revaluation reserves   29  39 892  82 218 
Other reserves and retained earnings   30 1 450 939  779 749 
Net Income  392 984  671 191 
Total of Equity 3 316 814 2 966 157 

Total of Equity and Liabilities 35 760 603 41 351 896 
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the Years ended December 31, 2024 and 

2023 
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The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Executive Committee  

!

!

!

"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""!

!

!

The Certified Accountant 

!

!

!

"""""""""""""""""""""""""!

!

! !

Balance on 1 January 2023 1 433 000 346 609 30 783 433 140 2 243 531
Transfer of Previous Net Income:  - 433 140  - (433 140)  -
!!!!! Legal reserve  - 43 314  - (43 314)  -
!!!!! Transited results  - 389 826  - (389 826)  -
Comprehensive income  -  - 51 435 671 191 722 626
!!!!!Fair value change  -  - 27 970  - 27 970
!!!!!Taxes related to Fair Value Changes  -  - 23 465  - 23 465
Net Income for the Year  -  -  - 671 191 671 191
Balance on 31 December 2023 1 433 000 779 749 82 218 671 191 2 966 157

Balance on 1 January  2024 1 433 000 779 749 82 218 671 191 2 966 157
Transfer of Previous Net Income:  - 671 191  - (671 191)  -
!!!!! Legal reserve  - 67 119  - (67 119)  -
!!!!! Transited results  - 604 072  - (604 072)  -
Comprehensive income  -  - (42 326) 392 984 350 658
!!!!!Fair value change  -  - (55 711)  - (55 711)
!!!!!Taxes related to Fair Value Changes  -  - 13 385  - 13 385
Net Income for the Year  -  -  - 392 984 392 984
Balance on 31 December 2024 1 433 000 1 450 940 39 892 392 984 3 316 816

Share Capital
Other Reserves 

and Retained 
Earnings

Net Income for 
the Year Total of Equity

Fair value 
reserve 
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Statement of Cash Flows for the Years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!

!
!

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

!

The Executive Committee  

!

!

!

"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""!

!

The Certified Accountant 

!

!

!

"""""""""""""""""""""""""!

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Operational Activities
    Interests, commissions and other earnings received 1 428 663 1 475 285
    Interests, commissions and other costs paid (724 227) (451 998)
    Other operational payments and receipts (19 421) (53 088)
    Payments to employees and suppliers (303 535) (273 038)
    Income tax payments ( 134 057) ( 27 906)
Net cash flow arising from operational result before change in operational 
funds 247 424 669 254
(Increases) Decrease of operational assets
    Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 1 589 897 (4 045 370)
    Placements with credit institutions  -  - 
    Loan to customers 907 624 (97 707)
    Other assets (23 652) 131 011
Increases (Decrease) of operational liabilities
    Funds of Central Banks and other credit institutions (2 296 874) 959 176
    Customer funds (3 063 058) 1 928 280
    Liabilities represented by securities ( 341 800) 1 063 670 
    Other liabilities ( 29 607) (349 466)

Net cash flow arising from operational activities (3 257 469) (410 406)
Investment Activities
    Acquisition of intangible assets ( 2 084) ( 11 348)
    Acquisition of tangible assets 634 (9 823)

Cash flow arising from investment activities (1 450) (21 170)
Financing Activities
   Subscription of capital  -  - 

Cash flow arising from financing activities  -  - 
Net change of Cash and cash equivalents (3 011 495) 237 678
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the period 17 252 784 16 835 124
Effects of foreign exchange differences in cash and cash equivalents 21 099 179 983

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 14 262 388 17 252 784

Cash and cash equivalents comprises:
Cash 114 586 85 035
Deposits with Central Banks 890 682 732 516
Placements and Deposits with other credit institutions(1) 13 257 120 16 435 234

Total 14 262 388 17 252 785

Intercontinental Investment Bank S.A.
Av. Cidade de Lisboa, C.P. 35, Praia - Santiago - Cabo Verde.
NIF 261973240, registada e matriculada na conservatória do Registo Comercial da Praia com nº 3076

+238 260 2626
iibanks.com/westafrica

43



!

!

2.! Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 

31, 2024 

NOTE 1: Activities 

Intercontinental Investment Bank, S.A. (iibCV) is a commercial bank with a registered office 

in Praia that was opened in July 2010, having started its operations in mid-August of the 

same year.  

The Bank's activities cover most areas of the banking sector, with a special focus on the 

medium-sized and large companies segment. 

The Bank, previously called Banco Internacional de Cabo Verde, was until July 10, 2018, 

part of the Novo Banco Group, which held 100% of its capital, and as of July 11, after 

completion of a sale process, it became 90% owned by the iib Group Holding WLL, with 

10% remaining in the possession of the Novo Banco Group (through Novo Banco Africa 

SGPS, S.A.).  

In July 2019, the Bank adopted its current name, becoming International Investment Bank, 

(iibCV), currently operating through its Head Office in Praia and Customer Service Offices 

in Sal and S. Vicente. 

In 2024, iib group acquired the 10% stake held by Novo Banco Group (through Novo Banco 

Africa SGPS, S.A.) and changed its name to Intercontinental Investment Bank. 

NOTE 2: Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies 

2.1.!Basis of Presentation 

The Bank's financial statements, now presented, refer to December 31, 2024 and were 

prepared in accordance with the principles established in the International Financial 

Reporting Standards (IFRS) in force on December 31, 2024. 

The IFRS include accounting standards issued by the International Accounting Standards 

Board (IASB) and interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting 

Interpretation Committee (IFRIC) and respective predecessor bodies. 

The financial statements are stated in thousands of Cabo Verde Escudos, rounded to the 

nearest thousand. They were prepared in accordance with the historical cost principle, with 

the exception of assets and liabilities recorded at fair value, namely financial assets at fair 

value through other comprehensive income. 
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Preparing financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Bank to make 

judgments and estimates and use assumptions that affect the application of accounting 

policies and the amounts of income, costs, assets and liabilities. Changes to such 

assumptions or differences between these assumptions and reality may have an impact on 

current estimates and judgments. The areas that involve a higher level of judgment or 

complexity, or where significant assumptions and estimates are used to prepare the 

financial statements, are analyzed in Note 3. 

These financial statements were approved at the Executive Board April 17, 2025 meeting 

and are pending approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders. However, the Executive 

Boardassumes that they will be approved without significant changes. 

The accounting policies are consistent with those used in preparing the previous year's 

financial statements. 

2.2.!Significant!Accounting Policies 

#$! Financial assets and liabilities!

(i) Classification of financial assets 

The Bank classifies its financial assets in one of the following valuation categories: 

• Investments at amortized cost; 

• Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income; and 

• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. 

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments are presented as follows: 

Debit Instruments 

Debt instruments are instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the 

issuer's perspective, such as loans, public and private bonds and accounts receivable 

acquired from customers under non-recourse factoring agreements. 

The classification and subsequent valuation of these instruments in the above categories is 

based on the following two elements: 

• The Bank's business model for managing financial assets, and 

• The contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets. 
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A) Financial assets at amortized cost 

A financial asset is classified under “Financial assets at amortized cost” when the following 

conditions are cumulatively met: 

• It is managed as a business model whose goal is to hold financial assets in order to 

receive contractual cash flows; and 

• Contractual conditions give rise to cash flows on specific dates, which are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the outstanding principal amount. 

The financial assets at amortized cost category includes “Investments in other credit 

institutions” and “Customer loans.” 

B) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

A financial asset is classified under “Financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income” when the following conditions are cumulatively met: 

• It is managed as a business model whose goal combines the receipt of contractual 

cash flows from financial assets and their sale; and 

• Contractual conditions give rise to cash flows on specific dates, which are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the outstanding principal amount. 

C) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

A financial asset is classified under "Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss" 

where, due to the Bank's business model or due to its contractual cash flow characteristics, 

it is not appropriate to classify the financial asset in any of the previous categories. On the 

transition date, in order to classify financial assets in this category, the Bank also considered 

whether it expects to recover the book value of the asset through its sale to a third party. 

Also included in this portfolio are all instruments that meet any of the following 

characteristics: 

• They originated or were acquired with the aim of transacting them in the short term; 

• They are part of a group of identified and jointly managed financial instruments for 

which there is evidence of recent actions aimed at obtaining short-term gains; 

• They are derivative instruments that do not comply with the definition of a financial 

guarantee contract nor have been designated as hedging instruments. 
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Business model assessment 

The business model reflects the way the Bank manages its assets with a view to generating 

cash flows. Thus, it is important to understand whether the Bank's goal is only to receive 

the contractual cash flows from the assets (“Hold to collect”) or if it intends to receive the 

contractual cash flows and the cash flows resulting from the sale of the assets (“Hold to 

collect and sell”). If none of these situations apply (e.g., the financial assets are held for 

trading), then the financial assets are classified as part of “another” business model and 

recognized at fair value through profit or loss. Factors considered by the Bank when 

identifying the business model for a group of assets include past experience with respect 

to how cash flows are received, how asset performance is evaluated and reported to the 

Board, how risks are assessed and managed and how directors are paid.  

Securities held for trading are held primarily for the purpose of being sold in the short term 

or form part of a portfolio of jointly managed financial instruments for which there is clear 

evidence of a recent pattern of short-term earnings. These securities are classified under 

“other” business models and recognized at fair value through profit or loss. 

The business model assessment does not depend on the intentions for an individual 

instrument, but for a set of instruments, taking into account the frequency, value, sales 

schedule in previous years, the reasons for the said sales and the expectations regarding 

future sales. Infrequent or insignificant sales, or sales close to the asset's maturity, and 

those motivated by an increase in the credit risk of financial assets or to manage 

concentration risk, among others, may be compatible with the model of holding assets to 

receive contractual cash flows. 

If a financial asset contains a contractual clause that may modify the schedule or amount 

of contractual cash flows (such as early amortization or extension of duration clauses), the 

Bank determines whether the cash flows that will be generated over the life of the 

instrument, due to the exercise of said contractual clause, are solely payments of principal 

and interest on the outstanding principal amount. 

In the event that a financial asset envisages a periodic interest rate adjustment, but the 

frequency of this adjustment does not coincide with the term of the reference interest rate 

(for example, the interest rate is adjusted every three months), at the time of initial 

recognition, the Bank assesses that inconsistency in the interest component to determine 

whether the contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest on 

the outstanding principal amount. 
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Contractual conditions that, at the time of initial recognition, have a minimal effect on cash 

flows or depend on the occurrence of exceptional or highly unlikely events (such as 

settlement by the issuer) do not prevent their classification in the portfolios at amortized 

cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. 

SPPI assessment 

When the business model involves holding assets in order to (i) receive contractual cash 

flows or (ii) receive contractual cash flows and sell these assets, the Bank assesses whether 

the cash flows from the financial instrument correspond solely to payments of principal and 

interest on outstanding principal (Solely Payments of Principal and Interest - “SPPI” - test). 

In this assessment, the Bank considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent 

with a basic loan agreement. That is, interest includes only considerations relating to the 

time value of money, credit risk, other normal credit risks and a profit margin that is 

consistent with a basic loan agreement. When contractual terms introduce exposure to risk 

or variability in cash flows that are inconsistent with a simple loan agreement, the financial 

asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when 

determining whether the cash flows correspond solely to payments of principal and interest 

on the outstanding principal (“SPPI” test). 

  

Equity instruments 

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer's 

perspective. That is, they are instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to 

pay and that show a residual interest in the issuer's net assets. An example of equity 

instruments is common stock. 

Investments in equity instruments are an exception to the general valuation criteria 

described above. As a general rule, the Bank exercises the option to, on initial recognition, 

irrevocably designate under financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 

income the investments in equity instruments which do not qualify as held for trading and 

which, in the event of not exercising the said option, would be classified as financial assets 

that must be accounted for at fair value through profit or loss. Impairment losses (and 

impairment reversals) are not recorded separately from other changes in fair value. 
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(ii) Classification of financial liabilities 

An instrument is classified as a financial liability when there is a contractual obligation to 

settle it through the delivery of cash or another financial asset, regardless of its legal form.  

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the underlying obligation is settled, expires or is 

cancelled. Non-derivative financial liabilities include funds from central banks and other 

credit institutions, customer funds and other loans.  

On their initial recognition, the Bank designates certain financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss (Fair Value Option), provided that at least one of the following 

requirements is met: 

• The financial liabilities are managed, assessed and analysed internally based on their 

fair value; 

• Derivative transactions are contracted in order to hedge these assets or liabilities 

economically, thus ensuring consistency in the valuation of assets or liabilities and 

derivatives (accounting mismatch); or 

• The financial liabilities contain embedded derivatives. 

  

(iii) Initial recognition and valuation of financial instruments 

Upon initial recognition, all financial instruments will be recorded at fair value. For financial 

instruments that are not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, fair value is adjusted 

by adding or subtracting transaction costs directly attributable to their acquisition or issue. 

For financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction 

costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss. 

Transaction costs are defined as expenses directly attributable to the acquisition or disposal 

of a financial asset, or to the issue or assumption of a financial liability, which would not 

have been incurred if the Bank had not made the transaction. They include, for example, 

commissions paid to intermediaries (such as developers) and mortgage formalization costs. 

Financial assets are recognized in the balance sheet on the transaction date – the date on 

which the Bank commits to purchase the assets, unless there is a contractual stipulation 

or applicable legal concept that determines that the transfer of rights takes place at a later 

date. 
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On initial recognition, when the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the 

transaction price, the entity shall recognize this difference as follows: 

• When the fair value is evidenced by the quotation of an equivalent asset or liability in 

an active market (i.e., level 1 inputs) or based on a valuation technique that uses only 

observable market data, the difference is recognized as a gain or loss; and 

• In other cases, the difference is deferred and the time of initial recognition of the gain 

or loss is determined individually. This difference can then be (i) amortized over the life of 

the instrument, (ii) deferred until the fair value of the instrument can be determined using 

observable market data, or (iii) recognized through the settlement of the asset or liability. 

 

(iv) Subsequent valuation of financial instruments 

After their initial recognition, the Bank shall measure its financial assets at (i) amortized cost, 

at (ii) fair value through other comprehensive income or (iii) at fair value through profit or 

loss. 

Trade receivables that do not have a significant financing component and commercial 

credits and short-term debt instruments that are initially valued at the transaction price or 

outstanding principal, respectively, are valued at the referred value less impairment losses. 

Immediately after initial recognition, an impairment for expected credit losses (ECL) is also 

recognized for financial assets measured at amortized cost and investments in debt 

instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, resulting in the 

recognition of a loss in profit or loss when the asset is originated. 

Financial liabilities are initially recorded at fair value less transaction costs incurred and 

subsequently at amortized cost, based on the effective interest method, with the exception 

of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, which are recorded at 

fair value. 

 

(v) Income and expenses from financial instruments 

Income and expenses from financial instruments at amortized cost are recognized 

according to the following criteria: 

i. Interest is recorded in profit or loss under “Interest and similar income” and “Interest 

and similar expense,” using the effective interest rate of the transaction on the gross book 
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value of the transaction (except for impaired assets where the interest rate is applied on the 

book value net of impairment). 

ii. The remaining changes in value will be recognized in profit or loss as income or 

expense when the financial instrument is derecognized from the balance sheet under 

“Investment income at amortized cost,” when it is reclassified, and for financial assets, when 

there are impairment losses or recovery gains, which are recorded under “Impairment for 

loans to customers net of reversals and recoveries,” for customer loans, or under 

“Impairment for other financial assets net of reversals and recoveries,” for other financial 

assets. 

Income and expenses from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are 

recognized in accordance with the following criteria: 

i. Changes in fair value are recorded directly in profit or loss, separating the part 

attributable to the instrument’s income, which is recorded as interest or as dividends 

according to their nature under “Interest and similar income” and “Income from equity 

instruments,” respectively, and the rest, which is recorded as income from financial 

transactions under “Income from financial assets and liabilities valued at fair value through 

profit or loss.” 

ii. Interest on debt instruments is recorded in profit or loss under “Interest and similar 

income” and is calculated using the effective interest rate method. 

Income and expenses from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 

income are recognized in accordance with the following criteria: 

i. Interest or, when applicable, dividends are recognized in profit or loss under “Interest 

and similar income” and “Income from equity instruments,” respectively. For interest, the 

procedure is the same as for assets at amortized cost.  

ii. Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss under “Foreign exchange gains 

and losses,” for monetary financial assets, and in other comprehensive income, for non-

monetary financial assets. 

iii. For debt instruments, impairment losses or their recovery gains are recognized in profit 

or loss under “Impairment for other financial assets net of reversals and recoveries." 

iv. The remaining changes in value are recognized in other comprehensive income. 
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Thus, when a debt instrument is measured at fair value through other comprehensive 

income, the amounts recognized in income for the year are the same as those that would 

be recognized if measured at amortized cost. 

When a debt instrument valued at fair value through other comprehensive income is 

derecognized from the balance sheet, the gain or loss recorded in other comprehensive 

income is reclassified to income for the period. On the other hand, when an equity 

instrument valued at fair value through other comprehensive income is derecognized from 

the balance sheet, the gain or loss recorded in other comprehensive income is not 

reclassified to the profit and loss account, remaining in a reserve item. 

 

(vi) Reclassifications between categories of financial instruments 

Only if the Bank decided to change its business model for managing financial assets would 

it reclassify all affected financial assets in accordance with the IFRS 9 requirements. This 

reclassification would be done prospectively from the reclassification date. According to 

IFRS 9, changes in the business model are expected to occur infrequently. Financial 

liabilities cannot be reclassified between portfolios. 

 

(vii) Fair value 

The Bank uses the following methodology for determining the fair value of securities: 

• Average trading price on the calculation day or, when not available, the average trading 

price on the previous business day; 

• Probable net realizable value obtained through the adoption of an internal valuation 

technique or model; 

• Price of a similar financial instrument, taking into account, at least, the payment and 

maturity terms, the credit risk and the currency or indexer. 

 

(viii) Loan modification 

Occasionally, the Bank renegotiates or modifies the contractual cash flows of customer 

loans. In this case, the Bank assesses whether the new contractual terms are substantially 

different from the original terms. The Bank makes this analysis considering, among others, 

the following factors: 
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• Whether the debtor is in financial difficulty, whether the modification only reduces 

contractual cash flows to an amount that the debtor is expected to be able to pay; 

• Whether any significant new term has been introduced, such as profit sharing or equity-

based return, which substantially affects credit risk; 

• Significant extension of contract maturity when the debtor is not in financial difficulty; 

• Significant change in the interest rate; 

• Change in the currency in which the loan was contracted; and 

• Inclusion of collateral, guarantee or other credit enhancement that significantly affects 

the credit risk associated with the loan. 

If the terms of the agreement are significantly different, the Bank derecognizes the original 

financial asset and recognizes the new asset at fair value, calculating its new effective 

interest rate. The renegotiation date is considered the initial recognition date for the 

purposes of calculating impairment, including for the purpose of assessing whether there 

has been a significant increase in credit risk. However, the Bank also assesses whether the 

newly recognized financial asset is impaired on initial recognition, especially when the 

renegotiation is related to the fact that the debtor has not made the originally agreed upon 

payments. Differences in the carrying amount are recognized in profit or loss, as a 

derecognition gain or loss. 

If the terms of the agreement are not significantly different, the renegotiation or modification 

does not result in derecognition, and the Bank recalculates the gross carrying amount 

based on the revised cash flows from the financial asset and recognizes a gain or loss from 

this modification in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount is recalculated by 

discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective interest rate (or adjusted 

effective interest rate for impaired, originated or acquired financial assets). 

  

(ix) Derecognition not resulting from a modification 

Granted financial assets are derecognized when the cash flows associated with them are 

extinguished, collected or sold to third parties and (i) the Bank transfers substantially all the 

risks and rewards associated with owning the asset or (ii) the Bank does not transfer, nor 

does it have substantially all of the risks and rewards associated with owning the asset and 

does not have control over the asset. Gains and losses obtained on the final sale of 

Customer loans are recorded in Other operating income. These gains or losses correspond 
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to the difference between the fixed sale value and the book value of these assets, net of 

impairment losses. 

The Bank participates in transactions where it has the contractual right to receive cash flows 

from assets but undertakes a contractual obligation to pay these cash flows to other entities 

and transfers substantially all the risks and rewards. These transactions result in the 

derecognition of the asset, if the Bank: 

• Has no obligation to make payments, unless it receives equivalent amounts from the 

assets; 

• Is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and  

• Has an obligation to remit any cash flows it receives from assets without material 

delays. 

The guarantees provided by the Bank (shares and bonds) through repurchase agreements 

and securities lending operations are not derecognized because the Bank substantially 

holds all the risks and rewards based on the pre-established repurchase price, thus the 

derecognition criteria do not apply. 

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the underlying obligation is settled, expires or is 

cancelled. 

 

(x) Write-off policy 

The Bank writes off financial assets, in part or in full, when it concludes that there is no 

reasonable expectation of receipt, leading to an extreme scenario of total impairment. The 

indicators that show that there is no reasonable expectation of receipt are (i) termination of 

operations and (ii) cases in which the recovery depends on the receipt of collateral, but in 

which the collateral value is so low that there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the 

asset in full. 

The rules implemented for selecting loans that may be subject to write-offs are as follows: 

• The loans cannot have an associated real guarantee; 

• The loans must be fully closed (recorded in overdue loans in their entirety and with no 

outstanding debt); 

• The loans cannot be branded as renegotiated overdue loans,  or be involved in an 

active payment agreement. 
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(xi) Impairment of financial assets 

Impairment losses are recognized for all financial assets, except for assets classified or 

designated at fair value through profit or loss and equity instruments designated at fair value 

through other comprehensive income. Assets subject to impairment assessment include 

those belonging to the customer loan portfolio, debt instruments and investments and 

deposits in other credit institutions. Impairment losses are recorded in profit or loss and are 

subsequently reversed through income if there is a reduction in the amount of the estimated 

loss in a subsequent year. 

Off-balance sheet items, such as financial guarantees and unused loan commitments, are 

also subject to impairment assessment. 

Impairment is measured at each reporting date in accordance with the three-stage model 

for expected credit losses: 

Stage 1 – From initial recognition and until there is a significant increase in credit risk, 

impairment is recognized in the amount of expected credit losses if the default occurs within 

12 months of the reporting date. 

Stage 2 – After a significant increase in credit risk compared to the date of initial recognition 

of the financial asset, impairment is recognized in the amount of expected credit losses for 

the remaining period of the financial asset. 

Stage 3 – For financial assets considered to be credit impaired, impairment is recognized 

in the amount of expected credit losses for the remaining period of the financial asset. 

Impairment losses are a probability-weighted estimate of reductions in the cash flow value 

resulting from default over time. For loan commitments, the estimated expected credit 

losses consider a part of the limit that is expected to be used during the period. For financial 

guarantees, credit loss estimates are based on expected payments under the guarantee 

agreement. 

Increases and decreases in the amount of impairment losses attributable to acquisitions 

and new originations, derecognition or maturity, and remeasurements due to changes in 

the expected loss or transfer between stages are recognized in profit or loss. 

Impairment losses represent an unbiased estimate of expected credit losses on financial 

assets at the balance sheet date. Judgment is considered when setting assumptions and 

estimates to calculate impairment, which may result in changes in the amount of provision 

for impairment losses from period to period. 
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Measurement of expected credit losses 

Expected credit losses are based on a set of possible outcomes and consider all reasonable 

and supportable information available, including historical credit loss experience and 

expected future cash flows. The measurement of expected credit losses is primarily the 

product of the instrument's probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) and 

exposure at default (EAD) discounted to the reporting date. The main difference between 

the expected credit losses in Stage 1 and Stage 2 is the calculation timeframe.  

The expected credit loss estimate is obtained for each specific exposure, with the relevant 

parameters being modelled on a collective basis considering a portfolio segmentation level 

that reflects the way the Bank manages its risks. The approaches were designed to 

maximize the use of available information that is reliable and supportable for each segment 

and that is collective in nature. 

Expected credit losses are discounted to the reporting date using the effective interest rate. 

 

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk 

Identifying a significant increase in credit risk requires significant judgment. Movements 

between Stage 1 and Stage 2 are based, whenever possible, on comparing the 

instrument's credit risk at the reporting date with the credit risk at the time of origination. 

The assessment generally covers the instrument, although it may consider information 

regarding the debtor. 

This assessment is carried out at each reporting date, based on a set of qualitative and/or 

non-statistical quantitative indicators. Instruments that are overdue for more than 30 days 

are generally considered to have seen a significant increase in credit risk. 

Preparing financial statements requires the Bank to make subjective estimates and 

judgments, and changes in these estimates may have an impact on the financial 

statements. These estimates are based on the best information available at the time the 

financial statements are prepared and take into account the uncertainties surrounding the 

impact of Covid-19 on the current economic environment. 
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Definition of default 

The definition of default was developed considering risk management processes, namely 

in the credit recovery component, as well as international best practice in this field. The 

definition of default may differ between segments and considers both qualitative and 

quantitative factors. Default criteria are applied to operations for individuals and to the 

debtor for corporate customers. Default will occur when there are more than 90 days of 

delay and/or when it is considered less likely that the debtor will fully comply with their 

obligations, for example due to capital being written off or multiple loan restructuring. The 

definition of default is applied consistently from period to period. 

i) Individual Analysis 

The individual analysis focuses on all significant customers. Significant customers are 

identified using one of the following criteria: 

• Customers with exposure above CVE 25,000,000; 

• Customers with exposure above CVE 10,000,000 and other indicators of credit risk 

deterioration. 

The individual analysis follows the following methodologies to measure expected loss for 

significant customers: 

• Going concern – recovery estimates consider operating cash flows and the 

enforcement of guarantees; 

• Gone concern – recovery estimates consider only the enforcement of guarantees. 

ii) Collective Analysis 

Collective analysis focuses on the operations of non-significant customers. 

For financial assets classified in Stage 1 and Stage 2, the measurement of expected losses 

is the result of the outcome between the financial instrument’s probability of default (PD), 

loss given default (LGD) and exposure at default (EAD). For financial assets classified in 

Stage 3, the measurement of expected losses is the result of the outcome between LGD 

and EAD. 

The PDs and LGDs used in the collective impairment model were obtained based on the 

Bank's knowledge of the Cabo Verdean financial sector, since the small number of 

operations does not allow the estimation of internal risk factors. 
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a.! Accrual basis 

The Bank follows the accrual principle for most items in the financial statements, namely 

with regard to interest on loan and deposit operations that are recorded as they are 

generated, regardless of the time of payment or collection. 

b.! Foreign currency transactions 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in accordance with the principles of the multi-

currency system, with each transaction being recorded exclusively according to its 

currency. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are converted into escudos 

at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences resulting 

from this conversion are recognized in profit or loss. 

Non-monetary assets and liabilities recorded at historical cost and denominated in foreign 

currency are translated at the exchange rate on the transaction date. Non-monetary assets 

and liabilities denominated in foreign currency and recorded at fair value are translated at 

the exchange rate prevailing on the date on which the fair value was determined. 

Conversions or amounts in foreign currency are converted into Cabo Verde Escudos and 

exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss. 

On the date they are contracted, spot and forward foreign exchanges are immediately 

recorded in the foreign exchange position. 

Whenever these transactions lead to changes in the net balances of different currencies, 

spot or forward exchange position accounts are moved, with the content and revaluation 

criteria being as follows: 

i)! Spot exchange position 

The spot exchange position in each currency is given by the net balance of that currency’s 

assets and liabilities, excluding the spot exchange position covered by forward currency 

swap transactions and adding the amounts of spot transactions awaiting settlement and 

forward transactions that mature in the two subsequent business days. The spot exchange 

position is revalued daily, based on the indicative exchange rates for the day published by 

Banco de Cabo Verde, giving rise to the movement of the exchange position account 

(domestic currency), against costs or income. 
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ii)!Forward exchange position 

The forward exchange position in each currency is given by the net balance of forward 

transactions awaiting settlement that are not hedging the spot exchange position, excluding 

those maturing within the two subsequent business days.  

All agreements relating to these transactions are revalued at forward exchange rates or, in 

their absence, by calculating them based on the interest rates of the respective currencies 

for the residual term of each transaction. The differences between the equivalents in 

escudos at the forward revaluation rates and the equivalents in escudos at the contracted 

rates represent the cost or reward of revaluating the forward exchange position, being 

recorded in a revaluation account of the exchange position against costs or income 

accounts. 

c.!Other tangible assets 

Other tangible assets are valued at acquisition cost less their accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses. Maintenance and repair expenses are recognized as a cost, in 

accordance with the accrual principle. 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method, at the following amortization rates 

that reflect the expected useful life of the assets: 

 

 

When there is an indication that an asset may be impaired, IAS 36 requires its recoverable 

amount to be estimated, and an impairment loss must be recognized whenever the net 

value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the 

income statement. 

The recoverable amount is determined as the highest between its net selling price and its 

value in use, with the latter being calculated based on the present value of estimated future 

Self-service properties 25
Furniture and supplies 4-8
IT equipment 4
Machinery and tools 5
Transportation and equipment 4
Interior facilities 8-10
Safety equipment 4-5

Number of years
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cash flows expected to be obtained from the continued use of the asset and its disposal at 

the end of its useful life. 

 

%&! Intangible Assets!

The costs incurred with the acquisition, production and development of software, as well 

as the additional expenses borne by the Bank for its implementation, are capitalized. These 

costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected useful life of these assets, 

which is normally between 3 and 10 years. 

All other charges related to IT services, which are not expected to generate future economic 

benefits beyond one year, are recorded as costs when incurred. 

 

e.!Employee Benefits 

The Bank does not record any addition for vacation and vacation allowances in its financial 

statements since it adopted the procedure of paying vacations and vacation allowances in 

the year in which the employees are hired. Thus, whenever an employee terminates his/her 

employment contract with the Bank, s/he is only paid the vacation and vacation allowance 

proportional to the months worked in the year in which s/he leaves. 

f.! Income Tax 

The Bank is subject to the tax system established in the Corporate Income Tax Code (Law 

no. 82/VIII/2015, dated January 7), at the rate of 21%, and a fire protection fee of 2% on 

the calculated tax, for an overall rate of 21.42% (2023: 22.44%). Income taxes comprise 

current taxes and deferred taxes. 

Current taxes are those that are expected to be paid based on the taxable amount 

determined in accordance with the tax rules in force. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. However, 

deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that one expects future taxable profits 

capable of absorbing the differences and tax losses to be used in the future. 

Income taxes are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are 

recognized directly in equity, in which case they are also recorded against equity. 

Tax losses calculated in a year are deducted from taxable income for one or more of the 

following three years. 
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g.!Recognition of Interest 

Income relating to interest on financial instruments measured at amortized cost and on 

available-for-sale financial assets are recognized under interest and similar income or 

interest and similar expense, using the effective interest method. Interest on financial assets 

and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is also included under interest and similar 

income or interest and similar expense, respectively. 

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future payments or 

receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter 

period for the net present balance sheet value of the financial asset or financial liability. The 

effective interest rate is established on initial recognition of financial assets and liabilities and 

is not subsequently revised. 

In order to calculate the effective interest rate, future cash flows are estimated considering 

all contractual terms of the financial instrument (e.g., advance payment options), while not 

considering any future credit losses. The calculation includes fees that are an integral part 

of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all premiums and discounts directly 

related to the transaction. For similar financial assets or groups of financial assets for which 

impairment losses have been recognized, the interest recorded under interest and similar 

income is determined based on the interest rate used to measure the impairment loss. 

h.!Recognition of fee and commission 

Fee and commission income is recognized as follows: 

• Fee and commission income obtained in the performance of a significant act, such as 

commissions in loan syndication, is recognized in profit or loss when the significant act has 

been completed; 

• Fee and commission income obtained as the services are provided is recognized in 

profit or loss in the year to which they refer; 

• Fee and commission income that is an integral part of the effective interest rate of a 

financial instrument is recorded in profit or loss using the effective interest rate method. e 

i.! Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include amounts 

recorded in the balance sheet with a maturity of less than three months from the date of 

acquisition/contracting, including cash and balances at central banks and other credit 

institutions. 
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j.! Equity 

An instrument is classified as an equity instrument when there is no contractual obligation 

to settle it through the delivery of cash or another financial asset, regardless of its legal form, 

showing a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all its liabilities. 

All costs directly attributable to equity issuance are recorded against equity as a deduction 

from the issue value. 

Distributions made on behalf of equity instruments are deducted from equity, as dividends, 

when declared. 

k.! Provisons 

A provision is created when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) resulting 

from past events, for which the future expenditure of funds is probable, and this can be 

reliably measured. The amount of the provision corresponds to the best estimate of the 

amount to be disbursed to settle the liability at the balance sheet date.  

Provisions are measured at the present value of the estimated costs to pay the obligation, 

using a pre-tax interest rate, which reflects the market assessment for the discount period 

and for the risk of the provision in question. 

Whenever one of the criteria is not met, or the existence of the obligation depends on the 

occurrence (or non-occurrence) of some future event, the Bank discloses this fact as a 

contingent liability, unless the assessment of the outflow of funds to pay it is considered 

remote. If future expenditure of funds is not probable, it is a contingent liability. Contingent 

liabilities are only subject to disclosure, unless the possibility of their materialization is 

remote. 

l.! Foreclosed properties 

In the course of its lending activities, the Bank runs the risk of not being able to have all its 

credit repaid. For loans with mortgage collateral, the Bank takes ownership of property and 

other assets to settle the loan.  

Although it aims to immediately sell all foreclosed properties, the Bank records these 

properties in the balance sheet under “Other Assets” due to the fact that they remain in the 

portfolio for more than one year and consequently do not comply with the conditions laid 

down in IFRS 5 for recognition under “non-current assets held for sale.” Upon initial 

recognition, these properties are recorded at the lower of their fair value, less expected sale 

costs, and the balance sheet value of the loan granted, subject to recovery. Subsequently, 
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these assets are measured at the lower between their initial recognition value and fair value, 

less sale costs, and are not amortized. Unrealized losses on these assets, once determined, 

are recorded in profit or loss. 

These properties are valued in accordance with one of the following methodologies, which 

are applied according to the property’s specific situation: 

i) Market Approach 

This approach is based on transaction values of properties similar and comparable to the 

property under study, obtained through market research carried out in the area. 

ii) Income Approach 

This approach aims to estimate the value of the property, based on the capitalization of its 

net income, updated to the present time, using the discounted cash flow method.!

iii) Cost Approach 

The Cost Approach is a criterion that breaks down the property value into its fundamental 

components: urban land value and urbanity value; construction value; and indirect cost 

value. 

The appraisals are carried out by independent entities specialized in this type of service. 

The appraisal reports are analysed internally, with assessment of the adequacy of the 

processes, comparing the properties’ sale values with their reappraised values. 

For this category of assets, the precepts defined by Banco de Cabo Verde through Notice 

no. 7/2015, dated December 24, are also observed. 

m.!Leases 

IFRS 16 sets out the following requirements regarding the scope, classification/recognition 

and measurement of leases: 

- From the lessor's perspective, leases continue to be classified as finance leases or 

operating leases; 

- From the lessee's perspective, the standard establishes a single model for accounting for 

lease agreements, which results in the recognition of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability 

for all lease agreements, with the exception of leases with a term of less than 12 months or 

for leases that affect low-value assets, where the lessee may opt for the recognition 

exemption provided for in IFRS 16, in which case it must recognize the lease payments 

associated with these agreements as expenses.  
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The Bank chose not to apply this standard to short-term lease agreements, less than or 

equal to one year, for which the economic loss due to non-renewal of the agreement is not 

significant, and to lease agreements where the underlying asset has low value. 

Lease Definition 

The new lease definition entails a focus on controlling the identified asset. That is, an 

agreement constitutes or contains a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an 

identified asset, i.e., substantially obtaining all the economic benefits of using it and the right 

to direct the use of that identified asset over a certain period of time, in exchange for 

consideration. 

Impacts from a lessee’s perspective  

For all leases, with the exception of leases with a term of less than 12 months, for which 

the economic loss due to non-renewal of the agreement is not significant, or for leases of 

assets with a low unit value, iibCV recognizes:  

- A right-of-use asset, initially measured at cost, taking into account the Net Present Value 

(NPV) of the lease liability, plus payments made (fixed and/or variable), less lease incentives 

received, termination penalties (if reasonably certain), as well as any estimates of costs to 

be borne by the lessee for dismantling and removing the underlying asset and/or restoring 

the site on which it is located. Subsequently, it is measured according to the cost model 

(subject to depreciation/amortization, according to the lease term of each agreement and 

to impairment tests);  

- A lease liability, initially recorded at the net present value (NPV) of future lease cash flows, 

which includes:  

Fixed payments, less lease incentives receivable; 

Variable lease payments, which depend on an index or rate, measured initially and using 

the index or rate at the agreement start date; 

The amounts to be paid by the lessee as residual value guarantees; 

The price for exercising a purchase option, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise 

that option; 

Lease termination penalty payments, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to 

terminate the lease by the lessee. 
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Since the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be easily determined (paragraph 26 of 

IFRS 16), lease payments are discounted at the lessee's incremental borrowing rate. For 

fixed-term agreements, this date is considered as the lease’s end date, while for other 

open-ended agreements, the term in which it will be enforceable is assessed. When 

assessing enforceability, particular agreement clauses are considered, as well as the 

economic impacts resulting from non-renewal of agreements.  

Subsequently, it is measured as follows:  

- By increasing its carrying amount to reflect the interest thereon; 

- By decreasing its carrying amount to reflect lease payments; 

- The carrying amount is remeasured to reflect any revaluations or changes to the lease, as 

well as to incorporate the review of in-substance fixed lease payments and the review of 

the lease term.  

The Bank reassesses a lease liability and calculates the corresponding adjustment related 

to the right-of-use asset whenever:  

- There is a change in the lease term or in the valuation of an option to purchase the 

underlying asset, with the lease liability being remeasured, discounting the revised lease 

payments and using a revised discount rate;  

- There is a change in the amounts payable under a residual value guarantee or future lease 

payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments, 

with the lease liability being remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments, using 

an unchanged discount rate (unless the change in lease payments results from a change 

in variable interest rates, in which case a revised discount rate must be used);  

- A lease agreement is amended, but that amendment is not accounted for as a separate 

lease, with the lease liability being remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments 

using a revised discount rate.  

IibCV did not make any adjustments for the periods presented. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated/amortized from the effective date until the end of the 

useful life of the underlying asset or until the end of the lease term, whichever is earlier. If 

the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or if the cost of the right-of-use asset 

reflects the fact that the Bank will exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset must 

be depreciated/amortized from the effective date until the end of the useful life of the 

underlying asset. Depreciation/amortization begins on the effective date of the lease. 
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Adopting the standard implies changes in the Bank's financial statements, namely:  

- In the Income Statement:  

i.! Recording interest expense related to lease liabilities in Net Interest Income; 

ii.! Recording the amounts related to short-term lease agreements and lease 

agreements for low-value assets in Other administrative expenses; and  

iii.! Recording the cost of depreciating right-of-use assets in Amortizations. 

- In the balance sheet:  

i.! Recording in Other tangible assets, through recognition of right-of-use assets; and  

ii.! Recording in Other liabilities, at the value of recognized lease liabilities. 

NOTE 3: Key Estimates and Judgments used in preparing Financial 

Statements 

IFRS establish a number of accounting treatments and require the Executive Board to make 

judgments and the necessary estimates to decide which accounting treatment is most 

appropriate. The main accounting estimates and judgments used by the Bank in applying 

accounting principles are discussed in this Note, with the objective of improving 

understanding of how their application affects the Bank's reported results and their 

disclosure. A comprehensive description of the main accounting policies used by the Bank 

is presented in Note 2 to the financial statements. 

Considering that in many situations there are alternatives to the accounting treatment 

adopted by the Executive Board, the results reported by the Bank could be different if a 

different treatment were chosen. The Executive Board believes that the choices made are 

appropriate and that the financial statements adequately present the Bank's financial 

position and the results of its operations in all materially relevant aspects. 
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3.1.!Impairment losses on financial assets at amortized cost 

Determining impairment losses for financial instruments involves judgments and estimates 

regarding the following aspects, among others: 

a)! Significant increase in credit risk: 

Impairment losses correspond to expected losses in the event of a default within a 12-

month period, for assets in Stage 1, and expected losses considering the probability of 

occurrence of a default event at some point up to the financial instrument's maturity date, 

for assets in Stage 2 and 3. An asset is classified in Stage 2 whenever there is a significant 

increase in its credit risk since its initial recognition. 

When assessing the existence of a significant increase in credit risk, the Bank takes into 

account reasonable and sustainable qualitative and quantitative information. 

b)! Definition of asset groups with common credit risk characteristics: 

When expected credit losses are measured on a collective basis, financial instruments are 

grouped based on common risk characteristics. The Bank monitors the adequacy of credit 

risk characteristics on a regular basis to assess whether they remain similar. This procedure 

is necessary to ensure that, in the event of a change in credit risk characteristics, asset 

segmentation is reviewed. This review may result in the creation of new portfolios or transfer 

of assets to existing portfolios that better reflect their credit risk characteristics. 

c)! Probability of default: 

The probability of default is a decisive factor in measuring expected credit losses. The 

probability of default corresponds to an estimate of the probability of default in a given time 

period, the calculation of which is based on historical data, assumptions and expectations 

about future conditions, based on a benchmark. 

d)! Loss given default: 

It corresponds to an estimate of loss in a default scenario. It is based on the difference 

between the contractual cash flows and those that the Bank expects to receive, via cash 

flows generated by the customer's business or credit collateral. Loss given default is 

estimated based on, among other aspects, different recovery scenarios, historical 

information, the costs involved in the recovery process and the estimated valuation of 

collateral associated with credit operations. 
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Alternative methodologies and the use of other assumptions and estimates could result in 

different levels of impairment losses recognized and presented in Notes 14, 15 and 16, with 

a consequent impact on the Bank's results. 

 

3.2.!Income Tax 

The Bank is subject to Corporate Income Tax. Determining the overall amount of income 

tax (see Note 21) requires certain interpretations and estimates. There are a number of 

transactions and calculations for which determining the final amount of tax payable is 

uncertain during the normal business cycle. 

Other interpretations and estimates could result in a different level of current and deferred 

income taxes recognized in the year. 

The Tax Authorities have the power to review the Bank’s calculation of taxable income, for 

a period of 3 years, in the event of tax losses carried forward. Thus, it is possible that there 

will be corrections to the taxable amount, mainly resulting from differences in the 

interpretation of tax legislation. However, the Bank's Executive Board is convinced that 

there will be no significant corrections to the income taxes recorded in the financial 

statements. 

 

3.3.!Fair value of financial assets and liabilities valued at fair value 

 
Fair value is based on market quotations, when available. Otherwise, it is determined based 

on the use of prices of recent, similar transactions made under market conditions or based 

on valuation methodologies, based on discounted future cash flow techniques considering 

market conditions, the effect of time, the yield curve and volatility factors. These 

methodologies may require the use of assumptions or judgments in estimating fair value. 

Consequently, the use of different methodologies or different assumptions or judgments in 

the application of a certain model could give rise to different financial results from those 

reported in Note 21. 
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NOTE 4: Segment Reporting 

Considering that the Bank does not have equity or debt securities listed on the Stock 

Exchange, as part of paragraph 2 of IFRS 8 - Operating Segments, the Bank is exempt 

from presenting information on segments. 

 

 

NOTE 5: Interest and Similar Income 

This item breaks down as follows:!

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!

!
!

The reduction in interest is due to a reduction in the volume of loans and, consequently, a greater diversification of income sources, 
essentially through investment in securities, which translates into a lower rate of return, and a slight reduction in the volume of 
investments in FIs. 

 

NOTE 6: Interest and Similar Expenses 

This item breaks down as follows:!

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!

!
!

The increase in the volume of interest is basically due to the increase in funding costs. 

! !

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Interest on loans to customers 389 382 608 782

Interest on investments in financial institutions 299 845 378 638

Interest on securities 597 637 368 439

Interest on balances at OCI 497   409 

Other  2 641  2 463 

Total 1 290 002 1 358 731

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Interest on central banks funds  79 680  73 951 

Interest on funds from other financial institutions  216 662  108 317 

Customer fund interest  176 875 106 020

Interest on liabilities represented by securities  131 524  106 251 

Interest on subordinated liabilities  10 350  8 944 

Other   259   570 

Total 615 350 404 053
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NOTE 7: Fee and commission Income and Expense 

This item breaks down as follows:!

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!

!
!

NOTE 8: Income from Foreign Currency Revaluation 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!

!
!

This item includes income from the currency revaluation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, in 
accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.2 c). 

! !

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Income from services and commissions 113 605 173 467

  Credit operations 9 375 22 654

  Transfer of money 47 246 42 355

  Miscellaneous commissions 43 061 87 428

      Commission for setting up operations 2 907 1 720

      Account management commission 3 122 3 119

      Other commissions 37 032 82 590

  Guarantees and securities 9 211 8 156

  Card management 2 346 2 223

  Documentary credits  2 366  10 651 

Service charges and commissions (59 502) (156 363)

  Commission on market operations (7 444) (5 958)

  Commission on credit cards (18 346) (16 159)

  Other commissions ( 33 712) ( 134 246)
Total 54 103 17 104

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Gains on foreign currency trasactions

     Foreign currency 23 957 183 471

Losses on foreign currency transactions

     Foreign currency (2 858) (3 488)
Total 21 099 179 983
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NOTE 9: Other Operating Income 

This item breaks down as follows:!

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!

!
!

NOTE 10: Staff Costs 

This item breaks down as follows:!

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!

!
!

The costs related to the compensation and other benefits paid to the Bank’s Executive 

Board and Audit Committee break down as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!

!
!

During the year, four new people were hired, with a view to boosting key areas and 

implementing the Bank's strategy. The number of employees, by professional category, is 

presented as follows: (

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Outros custos exploração ( 20 116) ( 53 948)

    Fines and penalties  - ( 5 965)

    Contribution to the Guarantee Fund ( 3 000) ( 3 000)

    Direct and indirect taxes ( 1 255) ( 2 748)

    Trade Finance Stamp Duty ( 14 607) ( 11 865)

    Other ( 1 254) ( 30 370)

Outros ganhos exploração   696   859 

    Miscellaneous gains   86  - 

    Other   610   859 
Total (19 420) (53 088)

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Compensation 112 143 93 645

Social charges 16 759 13 800

Other staff costs 23 017 35 722

Total 151 919 143 167

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Board of Directors 18 425 15 893

Fiscal Council 1 680 1 680
Total 20 105 17 573

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

  Executive Committee 3 2

  Advisory Office of the Executive Committee 1 0

  Management 16 16

  Professional Staff 26 25

  Administrative Staff 3 3
Total 49 46
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!

NOTE 11: General and Administrative Expenses 

This item breaks down as follows:!

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!

!
!

1) This item includes fees paid to Consultants, amounting to CVE 31.92 million, Certified Auditors, amounting to CVE 11.88 million, 
and legal services, amounting to CVE 1.8 million.  
2) This item includes legal, security and other costs (e.g. condominium-related services). 
3) This item includes electricity and fuel services, publications, hygiene, maintenance and repairs, training and insurance. 
4) Rent refers to the residences of Executive Committee members. 
 
 

NOTE 12: Cash and Cash Equivalents at Central Banks 

This item breaks down as follows:!

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!

!
!
!

NOTE 13: Cash Equivalents at Other Credit Institutions 

This item breaks down as follows:!

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!

!
!

Demand deposits with other credit institutions do not bear interest. 
 
 

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Fees 
(1)

45 600 40 910

Advertise 23 507 12 881

Other 
(2)

17 858 10 256

Travel, accommodation and representation 15 746 12 483

Communications and fowarding charges 12 331 12 504

Miscellaneous services ( 
(3)

10 077 10 545

Miscellaneous specialized services 7 603 6 570

Specialized IT Service 6 283 13 567

Rent from properties 
(4)

3 650 2 220

Miscellaneous third-party supplies 1 647 3 355

Transportation of money 664 2 580
Total 144 966 127 871

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Cash 114 586 85 035

Deposits at the Bank of Cape Verde 890 682 732 516

Interest 48   392 

Total 1 005 316 817 943

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Deposits at Foreign Credit Institutions

     Deposits 3 684 967 4 160 069
Total 3 684 967 4 160 069
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NOTE 14: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

This item breaks down as follows:!

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!

!
!

The Treasury Bonds in the portfolio at the end of 2024 bore interest at an annual rate of 7.7%. 
 
 

NOTE 15: Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

This item breaks down as follows:!

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!

!
!

Treasury Bonds in the portfolio at the end of 2024 had a residual maturity of less than 3 years (2.06 years) and bore interest at an 
annual rate of 3.053%. In 2023, the average residual maturity was lower than 3 years (2.4 years) and bore interest at the average 
annual rate of 3.070%. 
 
 
As at December 31, 2023, the Bank had CVE 68.05 million in recognized impairment for 

financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. This recognition is 

essentially associated with the item "Cabo Verde Treasury Bonds" resulting from the 

application of IFRS 9 relating to the recognition of the concept of Expected Credit Loss, 

whose measurement is based on the definition of country risk, assignable according to the 

international rating for Cabo Verde. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Corporate Bonds 3 811  508 3 578  672 

Receivables 53  799 29  414 
Total 3 865 307 3 608  086 

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Cape Verde Treasury Bonds 9 109  662 10 984  814 

Fair Value Reserve 86  613  172 620 

Income receivable 68  539 78  504 

Impairment ( 37 754) (68 051)
Total 9 227 060 11 167 887
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NOTE 16: Investments in Credit Institutions 

This item breaks down as follows:!

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(

!
!
!

The maturity schedule of investments in credit institutions, as at December 31, 2024 and 

2023, is as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!
!

!
!
!

As of December 31, 2024, applications to credit institutions accrued interest at an average annual rate of 3.15%. As of December 31, 
2023, the applications in the portfolio accrued interest at an average annual rate of 3.61%. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Placements withs financial institutions abroad 6 997 437 5 990 933

Placements with Other Financial Institutions 6 986 077 5 965 145

     Interest  13 799  27 960 

     Impairment ( 2 439) ( 2 172)

Placements in Financial Institutions in the country 2 572 279 6 282 060

     Very Short-Term placements with Bank of Cabo Verde 1 460 000 5 080 000 

     Short term placements with Bank of Cabo Verde  -  99 384 

     Placements with other financial institutions 1 102 650 1 102 650 

     Interest  9 629   26 
Total 9 569 714 12 272 993

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Placements withs financial institutions abroad

     Up to 3 Months 5 990 717 4 145 719

     More than 3 Months 1 006 719 1 845 215 

Placements in Financial Institutions in the country

     Up to 3 Months 2 572 279 6 282  060 
Total 9 569 714 12 272 993
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NOTE 17: Customer Loans 

This item breaks down as follows:!

(!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
!

!
!
!

The gross credit exposure amount and impairment amount, by segment, in accordance 

with IFRS 9, as at December 31, 2024, is as follows: 

 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
!

!
!
!

The credit exposure to companies classified as Stage 3 primarily represents a restructured 

operation with an unconditional guarantee from the State of Cabo Verde, currently in a 90-

day cure period. Upon completion of this period, and assuming regularization conditions 

are maintained, it is expected to be reclassified back to Stage 2. 

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

By Customer Type

   Corporate 5 829 104 6 745 755

   Individuals 639 002 632 722

6 468 106 7 378 477

By maturity

   Medium and long term 5 805 997 6 230 103

   Short term 662 109 1 148 374

6 468 106 7 378 477

By Product

   Loans 5 543 489 6 422 768

   Mortgage loans 550 209 561 078

   Current account loans 285 615 322 987

   Individual loans 64 373 43 804

   Overdrafts on demand deposits 1 863 6 119

   Individuals Other  22 558 21 721

6 468 106 7 378 477

Interest receivable 89 377 105 552

Efffect of Amortized Cost ( 4 198)  - 

Impairment (39 050) (52 661)

Loans Net of Impairment 6 514 236 7 431 368

Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment 
Corporate  2 025 636   14 736   406 138   2 218  3 397 330   19 419  5 829 104   36 373
Individual - Housing   468 569    113   53 741    230   27 899    279   550 209    622
Consumer   68 723    592   11 369    50   8 702   1 413   88 794   2 055

 2 562 928   15 441   471 248   2 498  3 433 931   21 111  6 468 107   39 050

31.12.2024

Segment
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
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The gross credit exposure amount and impairment amount, by segment, in accordance 

with IFRS 9, as at December 31, 2023, is as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
!

!
!!

Overdue loans included in the loan portfolio as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 were as 

follows:  

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!

!
!!

In compliance with current regulations, the Bank identifies and marks loan agreements that 

were restructured due to the customer's financial difficulty, whenever there are changes to 

the terms and conditions of an agreement where the customer has defaulted or is expected 

to default on their financial obligation. 

 

The restructured loan amounts as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
!

!
!

As at 12.31.2024, restructured loans essentially correspond to state-backed loans which 

have been restructured thanks to a grace period.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment 
Corporate  2 599 625   18 159  4 137 669   31 900   8 461    807  6 745 755   50 866
Individual - Housing   517 485    217   20 936    33   22 656    227   561 077    477
Consumer   61 907    353   2 701    40   7 037    925   71 645   1 318

 3 179 017   18 729  4 161 306   31 973   38 154   1 959  7 378 477   52 661

31.12.2023

Segment
 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Loan default 35 576 30 267
Total 35 576 30 267

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Corporate 3 215 157 8 019
Mortage 16 316 17 397
Consumer 1 121 1 535
Total 3 232 594 26 951
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Gross customer loans and interest receivable, by maturity, excluding the amortized cost 

effect, as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, break down as follows: 

 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(

!
!

As of December 31, 2024, the customer loan portfolio was contracted at an average annual interest rate of 7.88% (December 31, 
2023: 7.9%). 
 
Changes in loan impairment losses in 2024 are presented as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
!

!
!

Changes in loan impairment losses in 2023 are presented as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
!

!
!

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Up to 3 months 677 400 358 631

3 months to 1 year 377 735 1 770 374

From 1 to 5 years 4 891 893 4 839 974

More than 5 years 521 080  409 498 

Total 6 468 107 7 378 477

31.12.2023 18 730             31 973              1 959               52 661                
Increase  1 628   574  19 733  21 935
Replacement/(Reversal) ( 4 916) ( 30 049) (  480) ( 35 445)
Use - - (  101) (  101)

31.12.2024  15 442  2 498  21 111  39 050

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

31.12.2022 57 721             1 051                32 805             91 576                
Increase  1 506  31 615   2  33 123
Replacement/(Reversal) ( 40 497) (  693) ( 31 037) ( 72 227)
Use - - (  173) (  173)
Other movements - -   362   362
31.12.2023  18 730  31 973  1 959  52 661

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
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The gross credit exposure amount and impairment assessed individually and collectively, by sector and by segment, as at December 31, 2023, is 

broken down as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
!

!
!

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!

!
! !

Assessment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment
Individual -                       -                        -                      -               177 410             4 080               4 232 435            18 185             5 727                 513               4 415 572            22 778             
Collective 4 440                  50                        124 194             387             522 154             9 446               768 472               4 224               633 276             2 165            2 052 535            16 272             
Total  4 440   50 -  124 194   387 -  699 564  13 526 - 5 000 907  22 409 -  639 003  2 678 - 6 468 107  39 050

SECTOR
Construction Industries Trade Services Individuals Total

Assessment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment
Individual 4 409 845  22 266 - - - -  5 727   513 4 415 572  22 778
Collective 1 414 820  14 057  4 440   50  550 209   622  83 067  1 543 2 052 535  16 272
Total 5 824 665  36 323  4 440   50  550 209   622  88 794  2 056 6 468 107  39 050

SEGMENT
Corporate Construction and CRE Mortgage Individuals Total
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The gross credit exposure amount and impairment assessed individually and collectively, by sector and by segment, as at December 31, 2023, is 

broken down as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!
!

!

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!

! !

Assessment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment
Individual  9 631   304   466   6  258 780  7 444 4 504 652  26 842  20 958  1 036 4 794 487  35 632
Collective  1 971   14  165 106   447  475 436  8 840 1 329 712  6 969  611 765   759 2 583 990  17 029
Total  11 602   318  165 572   453  734 216  16 284 5 834 364  33 811  632 723  1 795 7 378 477  52 661

SECTOR
Construction Industries Trade Services Individuals Total

Assessment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment
Individual 4 763 899  34 293  9 631   304  14 024   111  6 933   924 4 794 487  35 632
Collective 1 970 254  16 257  1 971   14  547 054   366  64 711   392 2 583 990  17 029
Total 6 734 153  50 550  11 602   318  561 078   477  71 644  1 316 7 378 477  52 661

Corporate Construction and CRE Mortgage Individuals Total
SEGMENT
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Loan portfolio by segment and by year of production, as at December 31, 2024, is as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!

!
!

O detalhe da carteira de crédito por segmento e por ano de produção apresenta os seguintes valores a 31 de dezembro de 2023: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(

(

(
(

!
!

Production Year
Number of 

Transactions Amount
Impairment 
constitued

Number of 
Transactions Amount

Impairment 
constitued

Number of 
Transactions Amount

Impairment 
constitued

Number of 
Transactions Amount

Impairment 
constitued

Number of 
Transactions Amount

Impairment 
constitued

2010 - - - - - -   1  3 578 - - - -   1  3 578 -
2011 - - - - - -   4  23 168   64 - - -   4  23 168   64
2012 - - - - - -   7  37 810   4 - - -   7  37 810   4
2013 - - - - - -   5  20 109   97 - - -   5  20 109   97
2014 - - - - - -   5  27 730   3 - - -   5  27 730   3
2015 - - - - - -   60  163 286   201 - - -   60  163 286   201
2016 - - - - - -   3  13 040   46 - - -   3  13 040   46
2017 - - - - - -   1  3 375   5 - - -   1  3 375   5
2018 - - - - - -   3  15 228   2 - - -   3  15 228   2
2019   1  570 362  2 566   1  2 653   27   2  11 619   3   1  5 727   512   4  19 999   542
2020   3 1 514 260  6 814 - - -   3  17 059   2 - - -   3  17 059   2
2021   7 1 144 104  6 044 - - -   10  65 775   109   4  2 928   19   20  90 105  1 118
2022   7  456 751  1 284   1  1 771   18   3  11 503   6   10  6 651   402   21  476 677  1 710
2023   7 1 562 599  16 783 - - -   14  65 466   32   24  38 181   170   45 1 666 247  16 986
2024   7  576 587  2 830 -   15   6   14  71 465   49   27  35 307   952   53 3 890 696  18 270
Total 32 5 824 663 36 321 2 4 439 51 135 550 211 623 66 88 794 2 055 235 6 468 107 39 050

Corporate Construction and CRE Housing Individual Total

Production Year
Number of 

Transactions Amount
Impairment 
constitued

Number of 
Transactions Amount

Impairment 
constitued

Number of 
Transactions Amount

Impairment 
constitued

Number of 
Transactions Amount

Impairment 
constitued

Number of 
Transactions Amount

Impairment 
constitued

2010 - - - - - -   2  5 531   1 - - -   2  5 531   1
2011   1  21 228   57 - - -   4  25 388   6 - - -   5  46 616   63
2012 - - - - - -   7  41 787   4 - - -   7  41 787   4
2013 - - - - - -   5  22 648   8 - - -   5  22 648   8
2014 - - - - - -   5  28 799   3 - - -   5  28 799   3
2015 - - - - - -   68  200 411   136 - - -   68  200 411   136
2016 - - - - - -   3  13 811   47 - - -   3  13 811   47
2017 - - - - - -   1  3 575   6 - - -   1  3 575   6
2018 - - - - - -   4  23 480   2 - - -   4  23 480   2
2019 -  596 644  3 866   1  9 631   304   2  12 717   13   4  7 732   930   7  30 080  1 247
2020   3 1 883 506  12 945 - - -   3  21 176   2   1   455   7   7  339 271  2 807
2021   9 1 248 940  9 149 - - -   10  68 178   211   6  4 895   30   25 1 322 013  9 390
2022   16 1 216 787  4 455   1  1 801   8   4  16 939   8   17  14 460   141   38 3 412 497  18 625
2023   8 1 767 048  20 076   1   169   6   15  76 640   31   29  44 102   209   53 1 887 959  20 322
Total   37 6 734 153  50 548   3  11 601   318   133  561 080   478   57  71 644  1 317   230 7 378 478  52 661

Corporate Construction and CRE Housing Individual Total
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Loan portfolio by segment and by year of production, as at December 31, 2023, is as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
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!
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!

!
( (

Segment
Low credit risk

Significant 
increase in 
credit risk

Sub-total Overdue Days > 
90

Overdue Days < 
30 Overdue days 

between 30 - 90

Overdue 
Days <= 

90*

Overdue 
Days > 90

Construction and CRE 4 440                     -                    -                  -                  4 440              50              -                   -                  -            50              
Corporate 5 824 664              2 609 185        3 207 323      5 816 507      8 158              36 323       35 467            -                  -            856            
Mortgage 550 209                 521 461           6 091             527 552         22 656            622            386                 10                  -            226            
Individuals 88 794                   88 125             346                88 471           323                 2 055         1 988              3                    -            64              
Total 6 468 107             3 218 771       3 213 760     6 432 530     35 577           39 050      37 841           13                 -          1 196    

Total Exposure Total impairment 31.12.2024

Total Exposure 
31.12.2024

Overdue Days < 90
Total 

impairment 
31.12.2024

Segment
Construction and CRE  4 440 - - - -  4 440 -   50 - -   50
Corporate 5 824 664 2 609 185 - 3 207 323 -  8 157  7 834  36 323  21 034  14 433   856
Mortgage  550 209  521 461  12 138  6 091 -  22 656  4 178   622   386   10   226
Individuals  88 794  86 714  1 120   346 -  1 734 -  2 055  1 988   3   64
Total 6 468 107 3 217 360  13 258 3 213 760 -  36 987  12 012  39 050  23 408  14 446  1 196

31-Dec Impairment 31.12.2024

Total Exposure Exposure with 
low credit risk

Of with 
restructured

Exposure with 
Significant increase 

in credit risk

Of with 
restructured

Exposure when 
there's 

impairment

Of with 
restructured

Total 
impairment

Exposure with low 
credit risk

Exposure with 
Significant increase 

in credit risk

Exposure in 
impairment 

situation
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!
!

! !

Segment
Low credit risk

Significant 
increase in 
credit risk

Sub-total Overdue Days > 
90

Overdue Days < 
30 Overdue days 

between 30 - 90

Overdue 
Days <= 

90*

Overdue 
Days > 90

Construction and CRE 11 602                   9 631               1 971             11 602           -                   318            304                 14                  -            -              
Corporate 6 734 153              3 975 270        2 751 375      6 726 645      7 508              50 549       26 345            23 588           -            616            
Mortgage 561 078                 538 422           -                  538 422         22 656            477            252                 -                  -            226            
Individuals 71 644                   68 647             2 894             71 541           103                 1 317         1 285              30                  -            1                
Total 7 378 477             4 591 970       2 756 240     7 348 210     30 267           52 661      28 186           23 632          -          843           

Total Exposure Total impairment 31.12.2023

Total Exposure 
31.12.2023

Overdue Days < 90
Total 

impairment 
31.12.2023

Segment
Construction and CRE  11 602  9 631 -  1 971 - - -   318   304   14 -
Corporate 6 734 153 3 114 006   511 3 612 640 -  7 508  7 508  50 549  26 345  23 588   616
Mortgage  561 078  538 422  13 219 - -  22 656  4 178   477   252 -   226
Individuals  71 644  68 647 -  2 894  1 535   103 -  1 317  1 285   30   1
Total 7 378 477 3 730 706  13 730 3 617 505  1 535  30 267  11 686  52 661  28 186  23 632   843

31-Dec Impairment 31.12.2023
Exposure in 
impairment 

situation
Total Exposure Exposure with 

low credit risk
Of with 

restructured

Exposure with 
Significant increase 

in credit risk

Of with 
restructured

Exposure when 
there's 

impairment

Of with 
restructured

Total 
impairment

Exposure with low 
credit risk

Exposure with 
Significant increase 

in credit risk
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As at December 31, 2024, the fair value of collateral underlying the loan portfolio, namely in the Corporate, Construction, Commercial Real Estate 

(CRE) and Other Directly Related Activities (ORA) and housing segments are as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
!

!
 

As at December 31, 2023, the fair value of collateral underlying the loan portfolio is as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

valor em mcve

Fair value
Number of 

transactions
Amount Number of 

transactions
Amount Number of 

transactions
Amount Number of 

transactions
Amount Number of 

transactions
Amount Number of 

transactions
Amount Number of 

transactions
Amount Number of 

transactions
Amount Number of 

transactions
Amount Number of 

transactions
Amount

 < 0.5 MCVE - -   2  1 000 - - - - - -   1   500 - -   16  5 412 - -   19  6 912
>= 0.5 MCVE e < 1 MCVE - -   1  1 000 - - - - - - - - - -   13  10 600 - -   14  11 600
>= 1 MCVE e < 5 MCVE - -   2  3 000 - - - -   19  91 917   4  15 003 - -   9  20 842   19  91 917   15  38 845
>= 5 MCVE e < 10 MCVE - -   2  20 000   1  9 340 - -   59  475 142   1  7 000 -  9 956 - -   61  494 438   3  27 000
>= 10 MCVE e < 20 MCVE - -   2  28 000 - - - -   28  381 826 - - -  36 364   1  17 852   30  418 190   3  45 852
>= 20 MCVE e < 50 MCVE   1  34 200   1  30 000 - - - -   12  357 809 - - - - - -   13  392 009   1  30 000
>= 50 MCVE   1  412 214   5 2 194 439   1  127 700 - - - - - - - - - -   2  539 914   5 2 194 439

Total   2  446 414   15 2 277 439   2  137 040 - -   118 1 306 694   6  22 503 -  46 320   39  54 706   125 1 936 468              60                  2 354 648               

Real state Other real collateral Real state Other real collateral Real state
Corporate Construction and CRE Mortgage Individuals Total

Other real collateral Real state Other real collateral Real state Other real collateral

Fair value
Number of 

transactions
Amount Number of 

transactions
Amount Number of 

transactions
Amount Number of 

transactions
Amount Number of 

transactions
Amount Number of 

transactions
Amount Number of 

transactions
Amount Number of 

transactions
Amount Number of 

transactions
Amount Number of 

transactions
Amount

 < 0.5 MCVE - -   3  1 160 - - - - - -   1   500 - -   15  4 596 - -   19  6 256
>= 0.5 MCVE e < 1 MCVE - - - - - - - - - - - - - -   11  9 700 - -   11  9 700
>= 1 MCVE e < 5 MCVE - -   3  5 000 - - - -   11  51 917   4  15 003 - -   6  14 481   11  51 917   13  34 484
>= 5 MCVE e < 10 MCVE - - - -   1  9 340 - -   67  542 610   1  7 000 - - - -   68  551 950   1  7 000
>= 10 MCVE e < 20 MCVE - -   3  41 500 - - - -   29  410 166 - - - -   1  17 852   29  410 166   4  59 352
>= 20 MCVE e < 50 MCVE   1  34 200   1  30 000 - - - -   12  338 220 - - - - - -   13  372 420   1  30 000
>= 50 MCVE   2  469 674   6 1 784 620   1  127 700 - - - - - - - - - -   3  597 374   6 1 784 620

Total   3  503 874   16 1 862 280   2  137 040 - -   119 1 342 912   6  22 503 - -   33  46 629   124 1 983 825              55                  1 931 412               

Corporate Construction and CRE Mortgage Individuals Total
Real state Other real collateral Real state Other real collateralReal state Other real collateral Real state Other real collateral Real state Other real collateral
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The guarantee coverage ratio for operations in the Corporate, Construction, CRE and Housing segments, as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, is as 

follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
!(
(

Segment /Ratio Number of 
properties

Exposure with low 
credit risk

Exposures with 
significant increase in 

credit risk

Exposures when 
there's 

impairmant
Impairment 

Constructions and CRE
< 100% - - - - -
<= 125% e > 100% - - - - -
<= 150% e > 125% - - - - -
>= 150%   2 - -  4 440   50
No associated collateral - - - -

Corporate
< 100% - 1 386 558 - -  5 497
<= 125% e > 100% -  30 616 3 207 323 -  14 433
<= 150% e > 125% -   369 - -   1
>= 150% 2  304 935 -  5 990  4 479
No associated collateral  886 706 -  2 167  11 913

Mortgage
< 100% 5  63 315 - -   221
<= 125% e > 100% 9  62 226 - -   12
<= 150% e > 125% 4  21 217 - -   4
>= 150% 101  374 704  6 091  22 656   384
No associated collateral - - - -

Individuals
< 100% -  12 313 - -   295
<= 125% e > 100% -  5 649 - -   10
<= 150% e > 125% -  5 381 - -   10
>= 150% 2  29 120 -   195   574
No associated collateral  34 251   346  1 539  1 167

Total 125 3 217 360             3 213 760                   36 987            39 050             

31.12.2024
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Segment /Ratio Number of 
properties

Exposure with low 
credit risk

Exposures with 
significant increase in 

credit risk

Exposures when 
there's 

impairmant
Impairment 

Constructions and CRE
< 100% - - - - -
<= 125% e > 100% - - - - -
<= 150% e > 125% - - - - -
>= 150% 2  9 631  1 801 -   313
No associated collateral -   169 -   6

Corporate
< 100% - 1 898 053 - -  7 324
<= 125% e > 100% -  193 961 3 361 381 - -
<= 150% e > 125% 1  165 000  251 258 -  7 832
>= 150% 2  40 212 -  6 006   183
No associated collateral 816 780                 -  1 502  35 209

Mortgage
< 100% 2  26 306 - -   20
<= 125% e > 100% 9  62 750 - -   40
<= 150% e > 125% 8  43 200 - -   9
>= 150% 99  406 166 -  22 656   409
No associated collateral - - - -

Individuals
< 100% -  11 137 - - -
<= 125% e > 100% -  3 788 - - -
<= 150% e > 125% -  4 755 - - -
>= 150% 2  20 620 - -   935
No associated collateral  28 348  2 894   103   381

Total 125 3 730 706             3 617 504                   30 267            52 661             

31.12.2023
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NOTE 18: Repurchase Agreement Assets 

As at December 31, 2024, the Bank had CVE 1.13 million (2023: 1.04 million) in securities 

in its portfolio assigned with a repurchase agreement, classified as a money market 

instrument. 

NOTE 19: Other Tangible Assets 

This item breaks down as follows: 
!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(

!

!

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Real Estate

Buildings  214 972  212 827 

Works in rented properties  38 352  38 352 

 253 324  251 178 

Equipment

Furniture and supplies  45 518  50 357 

IT equipment  50 707  47 665 

Interior installations  18 169  17 840 

Safety equipment  12 446  12 446 

Machinery and tools  11 922  10 358 

Transportation equipment  6 737  6 737 

 145 499  145 403 

Assets under operating lease

Equipment  18 190  11 861 

Right-of-use assets  -  13 790 

 18 190  25 650 

Tangible assets in progress

Equipment  4 290  5 854 

Real state   451   451 

 4 741  6 304 

Depreciation ( 255 089) ( 229 819) - 

Impairment  -  - 

Total  166 665  198 718 
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This item breaks down as follows: 
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!
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Gross Accumulated Net Depretiation Gross Accumulated Net

Value amortization value Valor Imob. Deprec Valor Imob. Amortiz. for the year Value amortization value

Real Estate

Buildings 212 827 94 578 118 249 2 145  -  -  -  -  - 10 979 214 972 105 557 109 415

Works in rented properties 38 352 29 360 8 992  -  -  -  - 1 571 38 352 30 931 7 421

251 179 123 938 127 241 2 145  -  -  -  -  - 12 550 253 324 136 488 116 836

Equipment

Transportation equipment 6 738 4 185 2 553  -  -  -  -  -  - 760 6 738 4 945 1 792

Furniture and supplies 50 357 36 827 13 530 319  - (5 158) 86  -  - 3 602 45 518 40 343 5 175

IT equipment 47 665 30 729 16 935 3 042  -  -  -  -  - 5 255 50 707 35 984 14 723

Interior installations 17 840 14 255 3 585 329  -  -  -  -  - 827 18 169 15 082 3 087

Safety equipment 12 446 11 073 1 373  -  -  -  -  -  - 1 271 12 446 12 344 102

Machinery and tools 10 358 8 811 1 547  - 1 564  -  -  -  - 1 091 11 922 9 902 2 020

145 404 105 881 39 523 3 691 1 564 (5 158) 86  -  - 12 806 145 500 118 601 26 898

Assets under operating lease

Equipment 23 220 8 909 14 311 11 400  - (2 450)  -  -  - 5 071 32 170 13 981 18 190

Right-of-use assets 16 068 4 728 11 340  -  - 2 450  - 18 518 4 728  -  -  -  -

39 288 13 638 25 650 11 400  -  -  - 18 518 4 728 5 071 32 170 13 981 18 189

Tangible assets in progress

Equipment 5 854  - 5 854  - (1 564)  -  -  -  - 4 290  - 4 290

Works in rented properties 451  - 451  -  -  -  -  - 451  - 451

6 304  - 6 304  - (1 564)  -  -  -  -  - 4 740  - 4 741

442 175 229 819 198 718 17 236  - (5 158) 86  -  - 30 428 435 735 255 089 166 665

Balances at 31.12.23 Movements in 2024 Balances at 31.12.24

Acquisitions/Re
valuations Transfers Adjustments Abates

Intercontinental Investment Bank S.A.
Av. Cidade de Lisboa, C.P. 35, Praia - Santiago - Cabo Verde.
NIF 261973240, registada e matriculada na conservatória do Registo Comercial da Praia com nº 3076

+238 260 2626
iibanks.com/westafrica

87



!

!

!

This item breaks down as follows: 
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NOTA 20: Ativos Intangíveis 
This item breaks down as follows: 
 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
!

!
!

 
Intangible assets in progress represent the cost incurred with developments to improve the core system in use by the bank, in order 
to meet specific needs. 

The change in this item, as at December 31, 2024, was as follows: 
!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(

!
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As at December 31, 2023, it was as follows: 
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NOTE 21: Current and Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities 

The Bank is subject to Corporate Income Tax (IRPC).  

Current income tax is reflected in income for the year, except in cases where the 

transactions that gave rise to it have been reflected in other equity items. In these situations, 

the corresponding tax is also reflected against equity, not affecting the income for the year.  

The current tax for the year ended December 31, 2024 was calculated based on a 21.42% 

rate (2023: 22.44%), comprising a nominal IRPC rate and Fire Protection Fee, in 

accordance with Law no. 82/ VIII/2014, dated January 8, 2015.  

The Bank's IRPC self-assessment is subject to inspection and possible adjustment by the 

Tax Authorities, for a period of three years. Thus, possible additional tax assessments may 

take place, essentially due to different interpretations of tax legislation. However, the Bank's 

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Automatic information processing systems (software) 222 620 220 536

Intangible assets in progress 700   700 

Amortization (211 079) (204 579)

Impairment (  489) ( 4 329)
Total 11  752 12  328 

              Moviments in 2024

Gross Accumulated Accumulated Net Depretiation Gross Accumulated Accumulated Net

Value amortization impairment value for the year Value amortization impairment value

Software 220 536 204 579 4 329 11 628 2 084 6 500 (3 840) 222 620 211 079 489 11 052

Software (in progress) 700  -  - 700  -  - 700  -  - 700
221 236 204 579 4 329 12 328 2 084 6 500 (3 840) 223 320 211 079 489 11 752

Balances  at 31.12.23 Balances  at 31.12.24

Acquisitions Impairment
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Executive Board is convinced that, in the context of its financial statements, there will be 

no additional charges of significant value. 

This item breaks down as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!
!

!
!
!

The tax rate reconciliation can be analyzed as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!

!
!
!

Deferred tax assets are recorded as follows: 
!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
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Asset Liability Asset Liability
Current Tax Assets and Liabilities  90 491 ( 28 098)  68 102 ( 120 425)
Income Tax (IRPC) - estimate  17 707 ( 28 098)  57 665 ( 120 425)
Payment on account  72 784  -  10 437  - 

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Income before tax  426 116  768 219 
Tax Rate 21,42% 22,44%
Theoretical IRPC cost  91 274  172 388 
Efeito dos custos não dedutíveis
   Other costs / deductions ( 55 781) ( 62 096)
Deductible tax losses  -  - 
Tax benefits ( 7 559) ( 22 133)
Current income tax for the year  27 934  88 160 
Autonomous taxation 163 111
Income tax  28 098  88 271 
Effective tax rate 6,6% 11,5%

Recognized in 
Income

Recognized in 
Reserves

Balance
Deferred tax assets  23 758  -  18 146  5 612 
Deferred tax liabilities  -  -  - 
  Reserves  10 080  - ( 13 385)  23 465 
  Deferred Tax Expenses  5 035  5 035  -  26 349 

31.12.2024
Moviments 2024

31.12.2023
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NOTE 22: Other Assets 
This item breaks down as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4 

!
!

The value of Assets acquired in recovery of own credit corresponds to the balance relating to foreclosed properties from 2016 to 

2022. The latter are valued in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.2 m). 

Changes in the impairment of assets acquired in recovery of own credit are presented as 

follows: 

(!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!

!
!

The fair value and net book value of foreclosed properties, in 2024 and 2023, by asset type 

and by age, is presented in the following tables: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
!

!
(
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!

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Miscellaneous debtors

      Receivables  278 831  231 455 

   Assets acquired in own credit recovery  73 572  130 311 

   Other cash equivalents  -  47 921 

   Others   880   890 

   Others administrative expenses  6 634  22 015 

    Other adjustment accounts  105 617  74 076 

Impairment of Assets acquired in own credit recovery ( 6 807) ( 11 067)
Total 458 728 495 600

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Opening Balance  11 067  25 468 

Reversions ( 4 260) ( 14 401)
Closing Balance 6 807 11 067

Constructed building
Housing 4  46 450  43 801  3 482  40 319
Land
Urban 1  32 000  29 772  3 325  26 446
Total 5 78 450 73 573 6 807 66 765

31.12.2024

       Assets Number of 
properties

Fair value of 
the asset

Book value Impairment Net book value

Constructed building
Housing 5  101 340  100 540  7 741  92 798
Land
Urban 1  32 000  29 772  3 325  26 446
Total 6  133 340  130 311  11 067  119 244

31.12.2023

       Assets
Number of 
properties

Fair value of 
the asset Book value Impairment Net book value
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NOTE 23: Funds of Central Banks and Other Financial Institutions 
!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(

(

!

NOTE 24: Customer Funds and Other Loans 
This item breaks down as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
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Time elapsed since the 
grant/execution

Fair value 
of the 
asset

Book value Fair value 
of the asset Book value Fair value of 

the asset Book value Fair value of the 
asset Book value Fair value of the 

asset Book value

Constructed building
   Housing - -  25 850 22 942          15 600 17 000           5 000 3 859               46 450  43 801
Land
   Urban - - - -  32 000  29 772 - -  32 000  29 772
Total - -  25 850  22 942  47 600  46 772 -  5 000  3 859  78 450  73 573

31.12.2024
< 1 ano >= 1 ano e < 2,5 anos >= 2,5 anos e < 5 anos >5 anos Total

Time elapsed since the 
grant/execution

Fair value 
of the 
asset

Book value Fair value 
of the asset Book value Fair value of 

the asset Book value Fair value of the 
asset Book value Fair value of the 

asset Book value

Constructed building
   Housing - - - -  25 850  22 942  75 490  77 598  101 340  100 540
Land
   Urban - - - - - -  32 000  29 771  32 000  29 771
Total - - - -  25 850  22 942  107 490  107 369  133 340  130 311

Total
31.12.2023

< 1 ano >= 1 ano e < 2,5 anos >= 2,5 anos e < 5 anos >5 anos

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Central Bank Resources 6 202 000 10 009 324

Resources from Other Credit Institutions 8 213 881 6 703 431

Interest  148 441  128 503 

Total 14 564 322 16 841 259

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Deposits 13 778 777 16 841 835

    Deman Deposit 8 463 662 10 775 582

    Time Deposit 5 315 115 6 066 253

Interest 74 490 104 190

Total 13 853 267 16 946 025
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Customer Funds by maturity, as at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, are as 

follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4 
!

!
!

Customer funds due at maturity were contracted at an average annual rate of 2.26% (December 31, 2022: 2.22%). 

NOTE 25: Liabilities Represented by Securities and Subordinated Liabilities 

From 2022 to 2024, as part of the national capital market development program, the Bank 

issued five debt securities, totalling CVE 3.89 billion, with one of the securities maturing in 

November 202.   

These issues included the first public offerings of Blue Bonds and Green Bonds in Cabo 

Verde, with an average maturity of 4 years, based on the Bank's sustainability and social 

responsibility policy, being segmented as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
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!
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The Blue and Green Bonds were issued with the participation of the United Nations 

Development Program (“UNDP”) and the Joint SDG Fund, called the “iib Marine and Ocean-

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Payable on sight 8 463 662 10 775 582

Payable on due date 5 389 605 6 170 443

    up to 3 months 1 146 418 1 629 592

    3 month to 1 year 1 649 973 3 077 015

    1 to 5 year 2 593 214 1 463 836

Total 13 853 267 16 946 025

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Liabilities represented by securities 3 637 669 3 980 682 

 Sustainable Bonds  960 470 1 260 470 

           Social bonds  -  300 000 

           Blue Bonds  350 000  350 000 

           Green Bonds  610 470  610 470 

     Senior Bonds 2 400 000 2 400 000 

     Credit Linked Note  270 400  312 200 

     Interest  6 799  8 012 

 Subordinated liabilities  234 025  234 025 
     Subordinated Bonds  230 000  230 000 
     Interest  4 025  4 025 

Total 3 871 694 4 214 707 
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based Blue Bond” and the “iib Renewable and Energy-Efficiency Green Bond, respectively.” 

The purpose of the Blue Bonds is to enable the financing of structural projects, as well as 

the development and financial inclusion of small entrepreneurs in coastal communities, 

while the Green Bonds, which allocate part of the funds to support the Agostinho Neto 

University Hospital, aim to support energy transition-related projects. 
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NOTA 26: Provisions 
!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(

!

!
!
!
!
!

The changes in provisions are presented as follows: 
!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
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The portfolio guarantee coverage (see Note 31) is summarized as follows: 
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Title Description Designation Date of 
Issuance

Due Date Amortaization 
Type

Intereste Payment 
Frequency

Interast 
Rate

Balance 
Amount

Nominal 
Value

Subordinated 
Bonds

Bond Série A (TD + 3,25%) iib Subordinated Participation Bond Series 
A (TD + 3,25%) - 2022|2032

10-ago-2022 10-ago-2032 At Maturity Semi-annual 3,50% 234 025 230 000

Credit Linked Note CLN Série A (5% TANB) - 2022 | 
2027

iib PRAE - Program fo Economic Support 
Series A (5% TANB) - 2022|2027

30-nov-2022 01-dez-2027 Quarterly Quarterly 5,00% 125 940 209 000

Senior Unsecured 
Bonds

Bond Série C (3%) - 2022 | 
2025

iib 3S Senior Bond Series C (3%) - 
2022|2025 28-dez-2022 28-dez-2025 At Maturity Annual 3,00% 2 400 600 2 400 000

Blue Bond
iib Blue Bond D- 4% - 2023 | 

2028
iib Marine and ocean-based Blue Bond 

Série D - 4% 2023|2028 01-mar-2023 01-mar-2028 Maturity Semi-annual 4,00% 354 706 350 000

Credit Linked Note CLN - iib PRAE B - 2023 | 2027
iib PRAE - Program for restructuring and 
economic support  Series B (4% TANB) - 

2023 | 2027
08-set-2023 08-set-2027 Maturity Quarterly 4,00% 145 573 145 000

Green Bond
iib Green Bond E-3,5 - 2023 | 

2026
iib Renewable and energy efficiency Green 

Bond Series E 3,5% 2023|2026 28-dez-2023 28-dez-2026 Maturity Semi-annual 3,50% 610 651 610 470

31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Provisions for Assumed Commitments   168  1 872 
Provisions for Tax Contingencies  -  75 337 

Total 168 77 208

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Opening Balance  77 208  2 263 

Reversals ( 13 632) (  583)

Utilizations ( 63 700)  - 

Allocations   291  75 529 
Closing Balance   168  77 208 

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Guarantees Granted 45 718 599 666

Provisions   168  77 208 
Coverage Ratio 0,37% 12,88%
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NOTE 27: Other Liabilities 
This item breaks down as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!
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Lease liabilities represent the recognition of lease liabilities related to lease agreements, as a result of the adoption of IFRS 16. 

NOTE 28: Capital 

The Bank's share capital amounts to CVE 1.433 billion (equivalent to 1,433,000 shares) 
and is fully paid-up, being 100% held by iib Group Holding WLL. 

(!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!
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NOTE 29: Revaluation Reserves  
This item includes the revaluation of securities at fair value, as well as the revaluation of 

tangible assets, namely computer equipment, machines and tools. It also includes 

impairment of Securities, using the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) method. 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
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31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Costs payable

   Administrative costs 12 169 5 811

        IT services 4  - 

        Audit and consulting services 5 749 4 597

        Other Administrative costs 6 416 1 214

   Staff costs 17 315 30 323

Lease liabilities 19 321 26 762

Miscellaneous creditors

   General Government sector 31 288 40 635

    Other creditors 6 656 44 456

Transfers issued to offset 19 979 19 850

Other adjustment accounts 959 18 276
Total 107 686 186 115

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Subscribed Capital 1 433 000 1 433 000

Of which common stock 1 433 000 1 433 000

31.12.2024 Movimentos 2024 31.12.2023

Fair value of securities 86 388 ( 86 233)  172 620 

Impairment of securities - OCI ( 37 529)  30 522 ( 68 051)

Revaluation of Non-Financial Assets   233   233 

Other Revaluation Reserves   880   880 

Deferred Taxes securities Impairment  23 897 ( 6 799)  30 696 

Deferred Taxes Securities ( 33 977)  20 184 ( 54 161)
Total  39 892 ( 42 326) 82 218
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NOTE 30: Other Reserves and Retained Earnings 
This item includes legal reserves (10%) and other reserves (90%), arising from the transfer 

of income from previous years, broken down as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
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The legal reserve can only be used to cover accumulated losses or to increase capital. The 

legislation applicable to the banking sector requires that the legal reserve be credited 

annually with at least 10% of annual net profit, up to the amount of share capital. 

NOTE 31: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 
Contingent liabilities and commitments related to the Bank's activities are recorded in off-

balance sheet items and break down as follows: 
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NOTE 32: Related Party Transactions 
The amount of the Bank's transactions with related parties in the years ended December 

31, 2024 and 2023, as well as the respective costs and income recognized in the year, is 

summarized as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

Legal 
Reserve

Other 
Reserves

Retained 
Earnings

Total

Balance as at December 31, 2022  93 716  370 476 ( 117 583)  346 609 

Transfer of Income to Reserves  43 314  389 826  -  433 140 

Other moviments  -  -  - 

Balance as at December 31, 2023  137 030  760 302 ( 117 583)  779 749 

Transfer of Income to Reserves  67 119  604 072  -  671 191 

Other moviments  -  -  -  - 

Balance as at December 31, 2024  204 149 1 364 374 ( 117 583) 1 450 940 

Other Reserves and Retained Earnings

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Guarantees provided 45 718 599 666

Total 45 718 599 666
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The assets on the balance sheet regarding related parties, included in the table above, 

essentially refer to deposits and investments in foreign currency in these entities, which bear 

interest at current market rates. 

In addition, as at December 31, 2024, the Bank had a receivable of CVE 233 million, arising 

from payments on behalf of other entities of the group.!

NOTE 33: Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities 
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at the Balance Sheet's fair value, 

as at December 31, 2024 and 31 December 2023, is as follows: 
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Assets Liabilities Earnings Costs Assets Liabilities Earnings Costs

Shareholder

   Novo Banco, S.A.  -  -  17 405  - 4 722 635  -  35 642  - 

   IIBG Holdings WLL  233 119  109 120  -  -  168 545  14 137  -  - 

Other related parties

   IIB Djibouti  636 254  533 036  2 373   66   10  6 487  -  - 

   IIB Limited (Bahamas) 4 350 661   38  149 254  167 100 4 858 100   303  163 449  119 680 

   IIB System  -  -  -  -  14 215  -  -  1 594 
Total 5 220 034  642 194  169 032  167 166 9 763 505  20 928  199 091  121 274 

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
    Cabo Verde Treasury Bonds  -  9 227  060  -  9 227  060 

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

    Corporate Bonds  -  3 865  307  3 865  307 
 -  9 227  060  3 865  307  13 092  367 

31.12.2024
Valued at Fair Value

Market Quotes

(Level 1)

Valuation models with 
observable market 
parameters/prices 

(Level 2)

Valuation models with 
non-observable market 

parameters
(Nível 3)

Total Fair Value

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
    Cabo Verde Treasury Bonds  -  11 167  887  -  11 167  887 
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
    Corporate Bonds  -  -  3 608  086  3 608  086 

 -  11 167  887  3 608  086  14 775  973 

31.12.2023
Valued at Fair Value

Market Quotes

(Level 1)

Valuation models with 
observable market 
parameters/prices 

(Level 2)

Valuation models with 
non-observable market 

parameters
(Nível 3)

Total Fair Value
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The Bank's assets and liabilities at fair value are valued according to the following hierarchy, 

in accordance with IFRS 13 – Fair Value Measurement: 

Market quote values (Level 1)  
This category includes financial instruments with quotes available on official markets and 

those where there are entities that routinely disclose transaction prices for such instruments 

traded on liquid markets. 

Valuation methods with observable market parameters/prices (Level 2) 

This category includes financial instruments valued using internal models, namely 

discounted cash flow and option valuation models, which imply the use of estimates and 

require judgments that vary according to the complexity of the products being valued. 

Nevertheless, the Bank uses variables made available by the market as inputs in its models, 

such as interest rate curves, credit spreads, volatility and price indices. It also includes 

instruments whose valuation is obtained through quotes disclosed by independent entities, 

but whose markets have lower liquidity. Additionally, the Bank uses as observable market 

variables, those that result from transactions with similar instruments and that are recurring 

in the market. 

Valuation methods with non-observable market parameters (Level 3) 

This level includes valuations determined using internal valuation models or quotes provided 

by third parties, but whose parameters are not observable in the market. The foundations 

and assumptions for calculating fair value are in accordance with the principles of IFRS 13. 

Financial instruments at amortized cost 

The following table presents an analysis of the categories of financial instruments 

recognized at amortized cost in the financial statements with reference to December 31, 

2024 and December 31, 2023: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!
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Assets
Cash and balances in central Banks  1 005  316  -  1 005  316  -  1 005  316 
Cash  equivalents at other credit institutions  3 684  967  -  3 684  967  -  3 684  967 
Investments in credit institutions  9 569  714  -  9 569  714  -  9 569  714 
Customer loans  6 514  236  -  -  6 514  236  6 514  236 

 20 774  233  -  14 259  997  6 514  236  20 774  233 
Liabilities
Central banks' funds  6 306  645  -  -  6 306  645  6 306  645 
Funds of other credit institutions  8 257  679  -  -  8 257  679  8 257  679 
Customer funds and other loans  13 853  268  -  -  13 853  268  13 853  268 

 28 417  592  -  -  28 417  592  28 417  592 

31.12.2024

Assets/Liabilities 
recorded at 

amortized cost

Market Quotes

(Level 1)

Valuation models with 
observable market 
parameters/prices 

(Level 2)

Valuation models with 
non-observable market 

parameters
(Level 3)

Total Fair Value
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(1) - Assets at acquisition cost, net of impairment. These assets refer to unquoted equity and debt instruments for which no recent 

market transactions have been identified, and their fair value cannot be reliably estimated. 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4!
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The main methodologies and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of financial assets 

and liabilities recorded in the balance sheet at amortized cost are analysed as follows: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Central Banks, Cash Equivalents at Other Credit 

Institutions and Investments in Credit Institutions 

These are very short-term assets, so the balance sheet value is a reasonable estimate of 

their fair value. 

Customer Loans 

The fair value of customer loans is estimated based on the updated expected cash flows 

from principal and interest, considering that the payments are made on the contractually 

stipulated dates. The expected future cash flows from homogeneous loan portfolios, such 

as mortgage loans, are estimated on a portfolio basis. The discount rates used are the 

current rates for similar loans, which have not changed significantly since the time the 

current agreements were signed. 

Central bank funds and Funds of other credit institutions 

These are short-term liabilities, so the balance sheet value is a reasonable estimate of their fair value.!

Customer Funds and Other Loans 

The fair value of these financial instruments is estimated based on the updated expected 

cash flows from principal and interest. The discount rate used reflects the rates applied on 

deposits with similar characteristics at the balance sheet date. Considering that the 

Assets
Cash and balances in central Banks  817  943  -  817  943  -  817  943 
Cash  equivalents at other credit institutions  4 160  069  -  4 160  069  -  4 160  069 
Investments in credit institutions  12 272  993  -  12 272  993  -  12 272  993 
Customer loans  7 431  368  -  -  7 431  368  7 431  368 

 24 682  373  -  17 251  005  7 431  368  24 682  373 
Liabilities
Central banks' funds  10 110  108  -  -  10 110  108  10 110  108 
Funds of other credit institutions  6 731  151  -  -  6 731  151  6 731  151 
Customer funds and other loans  16 946  025  -  -  16 946  025  16 946  025 

 33 787  284  -  -  33 787  284  33 787  284 

31.12.2023

Assets/Liabilities 
recorded at 

amortized cost

Market Quotes

(Level 1)

Valuation models with 
observable market 
parameters/prices 

(Level 2)

Valuation models with 
non-observable market 

parameters
(Level 3)

Total Fair Value
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applicable interest rates are renewed for periods of less than one year, there are no material 

differences in their fair value. 

NOTE 34: Activity Risk Management 

Given the uncertainties generated by the Covid-19 pandemic and the increased risks 

associated with banking, combined with the contraction of the economy, it has become 

challenging to effectively measure the Bank's risks, which directly impacted the granting of 

new loans, maintaining portfolio quality and, at the same time, managing to preserve the 

soundness and profitability of banking products. 

The Risk Management Department, one of the Bank's main lines of defense, is responsible 

for identifying and monitoring the risks that threaten its activities, developing tools to 

measure them, establishing and monitoring exposure limits, in order to ensure adequate 

risk coverage and provide stakeholders with a comprehensive view of the institution's risk 

profile.  

Risk Management activities are governed by principles aligned with the Bank's strategy and 

business model, namely the Department's independence from the Business Units, support 

for effective decision-making on the risks associated with activities and operations, always 

ensuring adequate risk control. 

IibCV's Risk Management model is in line with international best practice and in harmony 

with the Board’s guidelines regarding exposure levels, taking into account the Regulator’s 

requirements and recommendations, as set out in Notice no. 02/2013. 

The Bank is exposed to various risks arising from the use of financial instruments, which 

are analyzed below: 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk results from the probability of financial losses resulting from total or partial default 

by a customer or counterparty with respect to contractual obligations established with the 

Bank, as part of its credit activity, and is controlled by the Overall Risk Department, which 

is responsible for systematically monitoring all contracted operations, in conjunction with 

the other units of the Bank and Group.  

This method helps to identify the main default triggers in a timely manner, enabling an 

adequate monitoring of the risk in the loan portfolio, given that the credit risk management 

function intervenes in all processes that involve this risk, namely by analyzing, approving 

and contracting credit operations; accounting for operations; monitoring loan agreements; 
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identifying customers at risk (default); controlling and updating the amount of guarantees 

received; designing risk models; calculating provisions and portfolio impairment; producing 

and reporting credit data and statistics, culminating in the process of recovering overdue 

loans. 

The loan portfolio is continuously monitored, emphasizing interaction between the teams 

involved throughout the successive stages of the credit process. This approach is 

reinforced by the introduction of successive improvements, both in terms of risk 

assessment and control methodologies and tools and in terms of procedures and decision 

circuits, in partnership with the Group. 

The Bank's credit risk profile, namely with regard to the evolution of credit exposures and 

possible losses, is monitored periodically by a committee. 

Regarding the Bank's maximum exposure to credit risk, the table below shows the position 

at the end of the year: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
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For financial assets recognized in the balance sheet, the maximum exposure to credit risk 

is represented by the book value net of impairment. For off-balance sheet items, the 

maximum exposure for guarantees is the maximum amount that the Bank would have to 

pay if the guarantees were called. For loan commitments and other irrevocable loan-related 

commitments, the maximum exposure is the total amount of commitments undertaken. 

In 2024, impairment by asset class was as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(
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31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Cash equivalents and investments in credit institutions 14 259 999 17 251 006 

Financial assets held for trading  10 000  70 000 

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3 865 307 3 608 086 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income 9 227 060 11 167 887 

Assets with repurchase agreement 1 132 609 1 043 190 

Customer loans 6 514 236 7 431 368 

Other assets  73 572  130 311 

Guarantees and sureties provided  45 718  599 666 

Total 35 128 500 41 301 514

Corporate (Funding) Mortgage loans Consumer Public Sector Total

Impairment of initial loans  81  215 ( 29  922)  1  311   57  52  661 

  Addition/Reversal in the period ( 14  494)   307   677 ( 13  510)
  Use in the period  - (  101)  - (  101)

Final loan impairment  66  721 ( 29  716)  1  988   57  39  050 

31.12.2024
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In 2023, impairment by asset class was as follows: 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(

(

!
!

As at December 31, 2024, the loan portfolio quality was as follows: 
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As at December 31, 2023, the loan portfolio quality was as follows: 
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Market Risk 
Market risk encompasses three different risks (interest rate, liquidity and foreign exchange 

risk) and generally represents a possible loss resulting from an adverse change in the value 

of a financial instrument, such as changes in interest rates, exchange rates, share and 

commodity prices, volatility or credit spread. 

Market risk management is integrated into balance sheet management, based on the risk 

appetite policy. This method is responsible for providing elements for setting balance sheet 

allocation and structuring policies, as well as for controlling liquidity and exposure to interest 

rate and foreign exchange risks. 

Corporate (Funding) Mortgage loans Consumer Public Sector Total

Impairment of initial loans  89  156   786  1  558   76  91  576 
  Addition/Reversal in the period ( 7  941) ( 30  897) (  247) (  19) ( 39  104)
  Use in the period  - (  173)  -  - (  173)
Other movements  -   362  -  -   362 
Final loan impairment  81  215 ( 29  922)  1  311   57  52  661 

31.12.2023

Corporate Individuals 
Mortgage

Consumer Total

Not overdue with  impairment  5 309  796  494  251  68  711  5 872  759 

Overdue loans with impairment  519  308  55  958  20  083  595  348 
Less than 30 days  506  711  27  210  19  414  553  335 
30 to 90 days  -  6  091   346  6  437 
91 to 180 days   338  -   157   495 
181 to 360 days  2  980  -   33  3  012 
Over 360 days  9  279  22  656   133  32  069 

Total  5 829  104  550  209  88  794  6 468  107 

Corporate Individuals 
Mortgage

Consumer Total

Not overdue with  impairment  1 727  770  493  220  66  723  2 287  713 

Overdue loans with impairment  5 017  985  67  858  4  921  5 090  764 
Less than 30 days  1 395  867  45  202  1  924  1 442  993 
30 to 90 days  3 614  610  -  2  894  3 617  504 
91 to 180 days  -  4  321  -  4  321 
181 to 360 days  -  -  -  - 
Over 360 days  7  508  18  335   103  25  946 

Total  6 745  755  561  078  71  644  7 378  477 
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Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk results from adverse changes in the interest rates of banking book items. 

Estimating exposure to interest rate risk implies the classification of all interest rate-sensitive 

asset, liability and off-balance sheet items, by repricing gap, in accordance with the Bank 

for International Settlements (BIS) methodology proposed by Banco de Cabo Verde. In 

addition to this calculation model, the Bank conducts a specific stress test, considering the 

assumption of massive mobilization of part of customer funds.  

IibCV’s interest rate risk level is not very significant, so hedging operations are carried out 

with a view to mitigating and controlling liquidity risk. 

The Bank has a positive overall repricing gap, a favourable position for income, indicating 

that a positive change in interest rates would lead to an increase in net interest income. 

Foreign Exchange Risk 
Foreign exchange risk arises from changes in the exchange rates used to convert banking 

book items in foreign currency to the base currency (CVE). That is, it is associated with 

currencies with exchange rate volatility against the Cabo Verde escudo (CVE), particularly 

the US dollar (USD), whose value is more volatile and in relation to which the Bank has a 

positive matching. In terms of foreign exchange position, this means that it has a higher 

volume of exchange rate-sensitive assets than liabilities, making it more capable of hedging 

this risk.  

The risk that the US Dollar (USD) represents is 100% hedged by foreign exchange trading 

(buying/selling foreign currency) with other financial institutions, in order to keep the foreign 

exchange position in that currency balanced or at minimum and low risk levels, giving the 

Bank an overall low risk profile with regard to foreign exchange exposure. 

Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk results from the institution's potential inability to finance assets, when the 

required liabilities are fulfilled on the due dates, and from the existence of potential difficulties 

in settling positions in the portfolio without incurring significant losses. 

With regard to monitoring, deposit and loan concentration are continuously controlled and 

the loan-to-deposit (LtD) ratio is monitored, with the position of different currencies being 

calculated on a daily basis, which helps to permanently quantify and mitigate liquidity risk 

and foreign currency exposure.  

The purpose of controlling liquidity levels is to maintain a level of available funds to meet 

short, medium and long-term financial needs, systematically seeking to assess overall 
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exposure to liquidity risk, by preparing daily cash flow information which, in addition to 

identifying negative mismatches, helps to determine elements to hedge them in a timely 

manner. 

The liquidity risk assessment revealed a high overall liquidity level (low risk), with a positive 

gap, which shows the Bank's solidity and ability to finance its activities. The overall 49% 

LtD confirms the Bank’s level of available funds to fulfill its responsibilities. 

The Bank currently has a significant portfolio of liquid or liquidable assets in the very short-

term, essentially concentrated in Investments in credit institutions (see Note 13), to cover 

the nature and duration of its liabilities. 

As at December 31, 2024, the contractual residual maturities of the financial 

instruments were as follows: 
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Despite the negative Gap in intermediate intervals, based on historical performance, there 

is, on the one hand, an expectation of renewal of a significant part of liabilities, namely 

customers’ demand deposits and, on the other hand, cancellation of liabilities represented 

by securities, namely the maturity of securities issued by the Bank. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Up to 3 months 3 months to 1 

year
1 to 5 year Over 5 years or 

indefinite
Total

Assets  14 234  846  4 009  342  13 091  981  4 131  768  35 467  937 
Cash and balances in central banks  1 005  316  -  -  -  1 005  316 
Cash equivalents at other credit institutions  3 684  967  -  -  -  3 684  967 
Financial assets held for trading  -  -  10  000  -  10  000 
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  -  -  963  631  2 901  676  3 865  307 
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income  1 362  885  1 244  463  6 619  712  -  9 227  060 
Assets with repurchase agreement  -  881  492  100  455  150  662  1 132  609 
Investments in credit institutions  8 035  684  1 534  030  -  -  9 569  714 
Customer loans  105  981  349  071  4 979  754  1 079  431  6 514  236 
Other assets  40  013   285  418  429  -  458  728 

Liabilities  17 836  021  8 822  968  5 503  957  234  025  32 396  971 
Central banks' funds  1 543  489  3 108  803  1 654  354  -  6 306  645 
Funds of other credit institutions  6 601  701  1 655  977  -  -  8 257  678 
Customer funds and other loans  9 610  081  1 649  973  2 593  214  -  13 853  268 
Liabilites represented by securities  -  2 400  600  1 237  069  -  3 637  669 

Subordinated liabilities  -  -  -  234  025  234  025 
Other liabilities  80  750  7  615  19  321  -  107  686 
Off-balance guarantees  46  551  -  -  -  46  551 

Spread / Gap ( 3 647  726) ( 4 813  626)  7 588  023  3 897  743  3 024  414 
Spread / Cumulative Gap ( 3 647  726) ( 8 461  353) ( 873  329)  3 024  414  - 
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As at December 31, 2023, the contractual residual maturities of the financial 
instruments were as follows: 
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Operational Risk 
Operational risk is defined as the probability of events occurring, with negative impacts on 

income or capital, resulting from the inadequacy or deficiency of procedures, information 

systems, people’s behavior or external events, falling into the following types: operational, 

information systems, compliance and reputational.  

Operational risk management is based on principles and strategies established by the Bank, 

on a code of conduct and on operational risk policies and standards, through the analysis 

of a catalog of processes, timely communication of risk events and consequent 

development of measures to improve the deficiencies detected. 

As operational risk manager, the Overall Risk Department is responsible for identifying, 

assessing and reporting risk events, whether of internal or external origin and, in 

collaboration with the heads of other organizational units, develop and implement measures 

to improve processes and mitigate risk. The responsibility for controlling operational risk is 

shared among all the Bank's employees, so that they cooperate in monitoring and 

identifying risk factors and weaknesses in the processes of their respective units, reporting 

incidents to the Risk Department.  

During the year just ended, there were few operational risk events, related to failures in the 

implementation of processes, with an immaterial financial impact on the Bank's income. 

 
Up to 3 months 3 months to 1 

year
1 to 5 year Over 5 years or 

indefinite
Total

Assets  15 986  224  5 885  741  12 048  820  7 146  351  41 067  136 
Cash and balances in central banks  817  943  -  -  -  817  943 
Cash equivalents at other credit institutions  4 160  069  -  -  -  4 160  069 
Financial assets held for trading  -  -  70  000  -  70  000 
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  -  -  843  218  2 764  868  3 608  086 
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income  -  2 554  457  6 733  859  1 879  571  11 167  887 
Assets with repurchase agreement  -  441  510  601  680  -  1 043  190 
Investments in credit institutions  10 427  779  1 845  214  -  -  12 272  993 
Customer loans  580  433  911  706  3 800  062  2 139  167  7 431  368 
Other assets  -  132  855  -  362  745  495  600 

Liabilities  16 761  418  6 707  503  14 485  160  234  025  38 188  106 
Central banks' funds  485  181  3 381  333  6 243  594  -  10 110  108 
Funds of other credit institutions  6 731  151  -  -  -  6 731  151 
Customer funds and other loans  9 358  971  3 025  059  4 561  995  -  16 946  025 
Liabilites represented by securities  -  301  111  3 679  571  -  3 980  682 

Subordinated liabilities  -  -  -  234  025  234  025 
Other liabilities  186  115  -  -  -  186  115 
Off-balance guarantees  46  551  487  520  65  595  -  599  666 

Spread / Gap ( 821  745) ( 1 309  282) ( 2 501  935)  6 912  326  2 279  364 
Spread / Cumulative Gap ( 821  745) ( 2 131  027) ( 4 632  961)  2 279  364  - 
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Additionally, improvements were made to the design of processes and procedures, and 

the control of the main risk indicators became more efficient. 

Equity Management and Solvency Ratio 

The primary goal of the Bank’s capital management is to ensure compliance with the 

institution's strategic capital adequacy objectives, respecting and enforcing the minimum 

capital requirements laid down by the supervisory authorities. 

The Executive Board is responsible for defining the strategy to be adopted with regard to 

capital management, being part of the overall definition of the Bank's objectives. 

In prudential terms, the Bank is subject to supervision by Banco de Cabo Verde, which 

establishes the rules to be observed by various institutions under its supervision. These 

rules determine a minimum equity ratio that institutions must comply with, in relation to the 

requirements demanded by the risks assumed, materialized through Notice no. 03/2007. 

The Bank's capital elements are divided into Core Tier I, Tier II and Deductions, with the 

following composition: 

•! Capital considered as Core Tier I: This category essentially includes paid-up 

statutory capital, eligible reserves, retained earnings for the period, when certified, 

and non-controlling interests. Negative fair value reserves associated with shares or 

other equity instruments, the book value of amounts relating to intangible assets 

and, when applicable, insufficient provisions and negative income for the period are 

deducted. 

•! Tier I Capital (FPB): In addition to the amounts considered as Core Tier I, this 

category includes the amounts accepted by the transitional arrangements provided 

for in Notice no. 3/2007(5)(4) - not yet recognized impact on core capital subject to 

transitional arrangements. 

•! Tier II Capital (FPC): It essentially incorporates subordinated debt eligible for positive 

fair value reserves associated with shares or other equity instruments. 

Shareholdings in financial institutions and insurance entities are deducted, as is the 

amount of expected losses for exposures, less the sums of value adjustments and 

existing provisions, resulting from the application of the IRB method for credit risk. 

•! Deductions (D): They essentially comprise the prudential amortization of foreclosed 

properties and the part that exceeds the credit risk concentration limits, as provided 

for in Notice no. 3/2007(12)(d). 
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Additionally, the composition of the capital base is subject to a set of limits. Thus, prudential 

rules establish that Tier II capital cannot exceed Tier I capital. In addition, certain 

components of Tier II capital (called Lower Tier II) cannot exceed 50% of Tier I capital. 

!"#$%&'(&)*+&''&,(-.(/01%'#.,'(12(&'3%,1'4(

(

!
!

The Bank calculates the Solvency Ratio in accordance with the Banco de Cabo Verde 

Notice no. 4/2007, which defines the Solvency Ratio as a function of the ratio between 

equity and market risks (foreign exchange risk, operational risk, credit risk), in order to 

monitor the adequacy between the amount of equity and the respective risks inherent to 

the Bank. Through this Notice, Banco de Cabo Verde establishes minimum solvency levels 

to be followed by the institutions subject to its supervision. Thus, Financial Institutions must 

achieve a Core Tier I Ratio of not less than 12%, calculated as follows: 
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Where: 

VAPRC – Value of credit risk-weighted assets, including off-balance sheet items, 

determined in accordance with Annex 1 of the Notice; 

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

Paid-in capital 1 433 000 1 433 000
Positive results carried foward from previous years  779 748  346 609 
Positive results for the last fiscal year  671 191  433 140 
Provisional positive results for the current fiscal year  392 983  671 191 
SUM 3 276 922 2 883 940 

Intangible Assets ( 11 752) ( 12 328)
Negative results carried foward from previous years  -  - 
SUM ( 11 752) ( 12 328)

CORE CAPITAL BEFORE THE APPLICATION OF THE TRANSITIONAL RULES 3 265 170 2 871 612 

ELIGIBLE CORE CAPITAL 3 265 170 2 871 612 

Subordinated loans and redeemable prefered shares  230 000  230 000 
Other revaluation reserves  38 266  74 577 
ADDITIONAL EQUITY  268 266  304 577 
EQUITY BEFORE DEDUCTIONS 3 533 437 3 176 189 

Fixed assets received as own credit reimbursement ( 49 292) ( 86 350)
EQUITY FOR RISK CONCENTRATION CALCULATION 3 484 144 3 089 839 

Part exceeding the risk concentration limits, paragraph 12(d) of Notice nº 3/2007  -  - 

Own Funds 3 484 144 3 089 839 

Risk Weighted Assets (including off-balance sheet) 6 292 561 6 280 641 

Solvency Ratio 55,4% 49,2%

 - Transitional rules set forth in paragraph 5 (4) of notice nº 3/2007 - still unrecognized impact on 
core capital,  - 
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VAPRTC – Value of foreign exchange risk-weighted assets, calculated in accordance with 

Annex 2 of the Notice; 

VEAPRO – Equivalent value in operational risk-weighted assets, calculated in accordance 

with Annex 3 of the Notice. 

 

NOTE 35 – IFRS Disclosures - New Standards as at December 31, 2024 

1. Standards, interpretations, amendments and revisions that came into effect 

during the year 

The following standards, interpretations, amendments and revisions endorsed by the 

European Union were mandatory for the first time in the year beginning on January 1, 2024: 

a)! IAS 1 (amendment), 'Classification of liabilities as current and non-current' and 'Non-

current liabilities with covenants' 

These amendments clarify the existing guidelines in IAS 1 regarding the classification of 

financial liabilities as current or non-current, clarifying that the classification should be based 

on the entity's right to defer payment at the end of each reporting period. 

In particular, the amendments (i) clarify the concept of 'settlement' by stating that if an 

entity's right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to compliance with future covenants, 

the entity has the right to defer settlement of the liability even if it does not comply with 

those covenants at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) clarify that the classification of 

liabilities is not affected by the entity's expectation (based on the existence or non-existence 

of the right, disregarding any probability of exercising or not exercising that right), or by 

events occurring after the reporting date, such as non-compliance with a covenant.  

If the right to defer settlement for at least twelve months is subject to certain conditions 

being met after the balance sheet date, these criteria do not affect the right to defer 

settlement for the purpose of classifying a liability as current or non-current. 

This amendment is to be applied retrospectively. 

b)! IAS 7 and IFRS 7! (amendment), ‘Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 - Disclosures: 

Supplier finance arrangements’ 

These amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: 

Disclosures, aim to clarify the characteristics of a supplier finance arrangement and 

introduce additional disclosure requirements when such arrangements exist. The disclosure 

requirements are intended to help financial statement users understand the effects of 
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supplier finance arrangements on the entity's liabilities, cash flows and liquidity risk 

exposure. 

Annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024. 

c)! IFRS 16 (amendment), ‘Lease liabilities in sale and leaseback transactions’ 

This amendment to IFRS 16 - Leases introduces guidance on the subsequent 

measurement of lease liabilities related to sale and leaseback transactions that qualify as a 

“sale” in accordance with the principles of IFRS 15, with a greater impact when some or all 

of the lease payments are variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a 

rate.  

When subsequently measuring lease liabilities, seller-lessees should determine “lease 

payments” and “revised lease payments” in such a way that they do not recognize 

gains/(losses) with respect to the right of use they retain.  

This amendment is to be applied retrospectively. 

These standards and amendments had no material impact on the Bank’s financial 

statements. 

!

2. Standards, interpretations, amendments and revisions that come into effect 

in future years 

The following standards, interpretations, amendments and revisions, which are mandatory 

for future financial years, had been endorsed by the European Union by the date these 

financial statements were approved: 

a)! IAS 21! (amendment), ‘The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates: Lack of 

Exchangeability’ 

This amendment aims to clarify how to assess the exchangeability of a currency, and how 

the exchange rate should be determined when it is not exchangeable for a long period. 

The amendment specifies that a currency should be considered exchangeable when an 

entity is able to obtain the other currency within a period that allows for normal 

administrative management, and through an exchange or market mechanism whereby an 

exchange transaction creates enforceable rights and obligations. 

If a currency cannot be exchanged for another currency, an entity must estimate the 

exchange rate at the transaction's measurement date. The goal is to determine the 

exchange rate that would be applicable on the measurement date for a similar transaction 

Intercontinental Investment Bank S.A.
Av. Cidade de Lisboa, C.P. 35, Praia - Santiago - Cabo Verde.
NIF 261973240, registada e matriculada na conservatória do Registo Comercial da Praia com nº 3076

+238 260 2626
iibanks.com/westafrica

109



!

!

!

between market participants. The amendments also state that an entity may use an 

observable exchange rate without making any adjustment. 

The amendments are effective for the period beginning on or after January 1, 2025. Early 

adoption is permitted, but the transition requirements applied must be disclosed. 

The Bank did not early apply any of these standards in the financial statements for the 

twelve-month period ended December 31, 2024. No significant impacts are expected on 

the financial statements as a result of their adoption. 

!

3. Standards, interpretations, amendments and revisions not yet adopted by the 

European Union: 

The following standards, interpretations, amendments and revisions, which are mandatory 

for future financial years, had not been endorsed by the European Union by the date these 

financial statements were approved: 

a)! IFRS 9 e IFRS 7, ‘Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments’ 

These amendments result primarily from the IFRS 9 Financial Instruments review project 

(Post Implementation Review – PIR IFRS 9) and clarify the following aspects relating to 

financial instruments: 

• It clarifies that a financial liability is derecognized on the “settlement date,” i.e., when 

the related obligation is settled, cancelled, expires, or the liability otherwise qualifies for 

derecognition. However, the possibility is introduced for an entity to choose to adopt an 

accounting policy that allows it to derecognize a financial liability that is settled through an 

electronic payment system before the settlement date, provided that certain conditions are 

met. 

• It clarifies how an entity should assess the contractual cash flow characteristics of 

financial assets that include variables related to environmental, social, and governance 

(ESG) factors and other similar contingent features. 

• It requires additional disclosures for financial assets and liabilities subject to a 

contingent event (including ESG variables) and equity instruments classified at fair value 

through other comprehensive income. 

The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2026. Early 

adoption is permitted. 
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This amendment is to be applied retrospectively. However, an entity is not required to 

restate the comparative period, with the potential impacts of applying this amendment 

recognized in retained earnings in the period in which the amendment is applicable. 

b)! IFRS 9 and IFRS 7,!‘Contracts referencing nature-dependent electricity’ 

The amendments refer specifically to agreements to purchase renewable energy whose 

production source is nature-dependent, so that supply cannot be guaranteed at specific 

times or volumes. 

Accordingly, these amendments clarify the application of the 'own use' requirements in 

energy purchase agreements, as well as the fact that hedge accounting is permitted when 

such contracts are used as hedging instruments. 

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2026, 

with early application permitted, except for the guidance on hedge accounting, which shall 

be applied prospectively to new hedging relationships designated on or after the date of 

initial application. 

c)!Annual Improvements to IFRS (Volume 11) 

Improvements are introduced cyclically to clarify and simplify the application of international 

standards through minor changes considered non-urgent.  

The main improvements included in this volume relate to: 

• IFRS 1 (Hedge accounting on first-time adoption of IFRS): This amendment aims to 

update the cross-references in paragraphs B5 and B6 of IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of 

International Financial Reporting Standards to the eligibility criteria for hedge accounting in 

IFRS 9 for paragraphs 6.4.1(a), (b) and (c). 

• IFRS 7 (Gain or loss on derecognition): This amendment aims to update the language 

relating to unobservable market data included in paragraph B38 of IFRS 7 Financial 

Instruments: Disclosures, as well as to add references to paragraphs 72 and 73 of IFRS 13 

- Fair Value Measurement.  

• IFRS 7 ((Implementation guidelines): Various paragraphs relating to the implementation 

guidelines for IFRS 7 have been amended for consistency and clarity. 

• IFRS 9 (Derecognition of lease liabilities): This amendment clarifies that when a financial 

liability is extinguished in accordance with IFRS 9, the lessee shall apply paragraph 3.3.3 of 

IFRS 9 and recognize the gain or loss resulting from that derecognition. 
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• IFRS 9 (Transaction price): With this amendment, the reference to “transaction price” 

in paragraph 5.1.3 of IFRS 9 is replaced by “amount determined by applying IFRS 15.” 

• IFRS 10 (Determination of a ‘de facto’ agent): Amendment made to paragraph B74 of 

IFRS 10, which clarifies that the relationship described in that paragraph is only one example 

of several possible relationships between the investor and other parties acting as de facto 

agents. The purpose of this amendment is to remove the inconsistency with the 

requirement in paragraph B73 that an entity should use its judgment in assessing whether 

other parties may act as ‘de facto’ agents. 

• IAS 7 (Cost Method): Replacement of the term “cost method” with “at cost” in 

paragraph 37 of IAS 7 following the elimination of the definition of “cost method.” 

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2026, 

with early application permitted. 

d)! '()*!+,"!‘Presentation and disclosure in financial statements’ 

IFRS 18 replaces IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and comes in response to 

requests from investors seeking information on financial performance. With the introduction 

of the new IFRS 18 requirements, investors will have access to more transparent and 

comparable information on companies' financial performance, with the aim of improving 

investment decisions. 

IFRS 18 essentially introduces three sets of new requirements to improve financial 

performance disclosure: 

• Comparability of income statements: IFRS 18 introduces three defined categories for 

income and expenses — operating, investing, and financing — to improve the structure of 

income statements and requires all companies to provide new defined subtotals, including 

operating income. The new structure and subtotals will give investors a consistent starting 

point for analyzing companies' performance, making it easier to compare them. 

• Transparency in Management-defined performance measures: IFRS 18 requires 

additional information to be disclosed on specific company performance indicators related 

to the income statement, known as Management-defined performance measures.  

• Aggregation and disaggregation of financial statement items: IFRS 18 provides guidance 

on how items in the income statement should be aggregated. 

IFRS 18 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2027, and is to be 

applied retrospectively. Early adoption is permitted provided that the option is 

disclosed.divulgada. 
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e)! '()*!+-"!‘Subsidiaries not subject to public financial reporting: Disclosures’ 

IFRS 19 allows eligible entities to prepare financial statements in accordance with IFRS with 

fewer disclosure requirements than those required by IFRS, while maintaining the obligation 

to apply all IFRS measurement and recognition requirements.  

The reduction in disclosures set out in IFRS 19 covers most IFRS standards. Entities are 

eligible if they: (i) are subsidiaries of a group that prepares consolidated financial statements 

in accordance with IFRS for public disclosure; and (ii) are not subject to public financial 

reporting requirements because they do not have listed debt or equity securities, are not in 

the process of being listed, and their main business is not the holding of assets in trust. 

IFRS 19 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2027, and its 

application is optional. Early application is permitted. Entities that adopt it early must 

disclose and align the disclosures in the comparative period with those of the current 

period. 

These standards have not yet been endorsed by the European Union and, as such, were 

not applied by the Group in the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2024. No 

significant impacts on the financial statements are expected to result from their 

endorsement.adoção. 

NOTE 36 – Events Subsequent 
As of the date these Financial Statements, for the year ended December 31, 2024, were 

approved, the Executive Board was not aware of any events that could materially impact 

the institution's financial position and business performance.  

The Bank is in the process of changing its name to Intercontinental Investment Bank, S.A. 

!

!

!

! !
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3.!Report and Opinion of the Audit Committee 

!

! !
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4.! External Audit Report 

!

!

!

!

!

!
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III.!Information on Corporate Governance 

1.! Organizational and Governance Structure 
The Bank's organizational structure is made up of a Executive Board, consisting of seven 

permanent directors and an alternate, and an Executive Committee with three Directors, 

advised by a solid Internal Control System comprising three key areas: Overall Risk, 

Compliance and Internal Audit, in addition to the Audit Committee, which supervises the 

Institution's activities. 

The Bank is organized into thirteen areas, which ensure the institution's operation and 

compliance with the principles that prevail in the financial system, as shown in the figure 

below: 

Organizational Chart 2024 

!

!

!

!

!
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2.! Description of roles and responsibilities of each member of the 

institution’s board 
At iibCV, a set of standards that establish policies, rules and procedures must be applied 

across all its units, subject to the adaptations that are necessary in each case, in view of 

the legal or regulatory specificities of each area concerned.  

In this context, responsibilities are established for a number of the Bank's departments to, 

as part of their duties, foster across-the-board application of Internal Regulations that are 

in force or that may be adopted, in direct functional coordination with all the departments. 

Accordingly, regulations that are deemed applicable to the national regulatory system are 

created and/or updated, all of which are ratified by the Bank's Executive Committee. 

The Executive Committee has broad powers in the Bank’s daily management, in 

accordance with the Company's by-laws. Therefore, it may exercise a broad range of 

powers in terms of management and representation and perform all acts necessary or 

convenient for pursuing the activities included in the Bank’s corporate purpose, with 

strategic management decisions being discussed and approved in this Committee.  

The Executive Committee has the authority to appoint representatives with the powers it 

deems appropriate, including to act as substitutes. 

!

! !
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3.!Business Units 

Like the other banks in the national financial system, iibCV has, since its creation, operated 

on a purely commercial basis, offering products and services to bank customers, namely 

individuals and companies. 

3.1.!Commercial 

The Commercial Department is responsible for promoting commercial activities aimed at 

private and corporate customers, both nationally and internationally. 

Entrusted with ensuring the necessary conditions for commercial activity growth, this 

department bases its strategy on excellence in selection, pricing and risk management, 

with high efficiency, with monitoring being based on the specialization of various segments 

and on attracting and generating value, always aiming at full customer satisfaction, on the 

one hand, and resource optimization, on the other. 

Excellence is a constantly pursued goal, by being close and offering personalized service, 

seeking to adapt its products and services to the needs of customers and the market. 

3.2.! Financial and Asset and Liability Management 

The Finance & ALM Department is responsible for developing and monitoring the Bank's 

financial management, as well as executing its financing plan, with its duties also including 

liquidity management and market and liquidity risk management.  

It aims to diversify the Bank's business and broaden the customer base and the range of 

products and services offered, being responsible for the Bank's institutional relations, 

through the management and maintenance of the Correspondents and Business Partners 

network. 

It constantly monitors the market, creating and updating products and prices, in 

accordance with key market variables and the Bank's objectives. 
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4.!Interno e de Internal Control and Risk Management System 

The role of the Internal Control System (SCI) is to organize and coordinate methods and 

measures that safeguard the Bank's assets and interests, promoting operational efficiency 

and ensuring reliability of accounting and financial information. Its systematization is 

essentially based on the performance of the three areas that comprise it: Risk, Compliance 

and Internal Audit.  

 

4.1.! Overall Risk 

The Overall Risk Department, one of the lines of defence and risk control, is responsible for 

monitoring the risks (credit, operational, market, liquidity and balance sheet interest rate) 

that threaten the Bank's activities, developing tools and methodologies to manage them, 

establishing and monitoring limits and issuing recommendations, with the aim of reducing 

the impact of risks on the Bank's income and capital. 

In order to identify, assess and quantify the Bank's risk exposure and profile, qualitative and 

quantitative analyses are carried out, including performance indicators, loan portfolio quality 

metrics, identification of risk events, execution of stress test scenarios, capital 

consumption, overdue loan recovery actions, and identification of potential risks that may 

affect the Bank's business plan and objectives. 

Risk Management activities are carried out independently of the other units responsible for 

controlling and supervising risks, in accordance with the Banco de Cabo Verde 

recommendations (Notice no. 02/2013) and with the best and most recent international 

practices. 

 

4.2.! Compliance 

The Compliance Function is an independent, permanent and effective function whose 

mission is to promote compliance with legal, regulatory, operational, ethical and conduct 

obligations and duties that are applicable to credit institutions and its governing bodies, 

directors and employees, as part of the institutional control and supervision environment 

laid out by the relevant regulatory authorities.  

Being responsible for one of the Bank's control functions, the Compliance Department 

cooperates with the other control functions (Overall Risk and Internal Audit) to monitor and 
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evaluate the internal control procedures on anti-money laundering and counter financing of 

terrorism.  

Thus, as regards prevention and risk-based approach, knowing the customer is one of the 

Bank's main concerns, given its importance in establishing their risk level, transaction 

profile, monitoring level and controls to be implemented, minimizing the likelihood of the 

Bank inadvertently entering into business relationships with people or entities known to be 

suspected of involvement in ML/TF crimes. 

For iibCV, the existence of a framework of values, principles and rules that guide its actions 

and the standards that establish the way it conducts business and carries out its activities 

is crucial. To this end, the Bank has implemented a Code of Ethics and Conduct, a Conflict-

of-Interest Management Policy and a Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing Risk 

Management Policy. 

 

4.3.! Internal Audit 

The Internal Audit Function's mission is to contribute to the sustainable development of 

Intercontinental Investment Bank, S.A.'s (iibCV) activities by systematically, rigorously, 

independently and objectively assessing the risk-based internal governance structure and 

internal control system, with a view to ensuring their adequacy and effectiveness. 

 

The Internal Audit function carries out its activities in accordance with internationally 

recognized and accepted Internal Audit standards and principles, especially the 

International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF), published by The Institute of Internal 

Auditors (IIA) 

!

! !
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5.! Bussiness Suport 

All iibCV operations are supported by a range of integrated and cross-cutting functions and 

expertise whose mission is to ensure business execution, from upstream to downstream, 

ensuring the reliability of data and information. 

Business Support is responsible for fulfilling customers' requests and for all interactions 

between customers and the Bank, unequivocally contributing to the pursuit of the Bank's 

results and, consequently, to its growth. 

5.1.! Information Technology 

The Information Technology (IT) Department has the mission of ensuring the proper 

functioning of the institution's technological equipment, IT tools, resources and services, as 

well as meeting emerging needs in terms of organizational systems, whether required by 

the regulator or from the internal areas, and continuously improving the technological 

systems implemented, aiming at meeting the needs for the normal performance of iibCV's 

activities. 

In 2024, the IT Department dedicated itself to continuous improvement of internal 

processes, both at departmental and interdepartmental levels, collaborating in the 

implementation of new solutions and improvement of internal technological tools, to better 

serve customers. 

 

5.2.! Operations 

The Operations Department is responsible for the operational part of the Bank's activities, 

for opening accounts and managing cards, transfers and other means of payment. It is also 

in charge of preparing and processing financing agreements, in different aspects, as well 

as the operationalization of customer investments. 

Also in the context of the duties established in the Bank's management model, this 

department functions as a back office, dealing with operational tasks related to transactions 

and customer relations, making all commercial activities faster and more secure. 

The main goal of the Operations Department is to offer high excellence in operations 

execution, at the lowest cost, contributing to the overall growth of the Bank's business, its 

profitability and maintaining customer satisfaction and loyalty. 
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5.3.! Accounting 

The Accounting Department is responsible for preparing and disclosing iibCV’s individual 

financial statements, namely regulatory reports and reports to the Group. 

It is also charged with handling tax obligations, including compliance with reporting 

obligations to customers and tax authorities, as well as establishing and coordinating 

contacts with external auditors and tax consultants. 

It is the department's job to prepare the reconciliation of the financial movements generated 

by the transactions made, value such transactions and report the positions and results of 

the Bank's various portfolios on a monthly basis. 

 

5.4.! Credit Recovery 

The Credit Recovery Department's mission is to timely identify potential or actual defaults 

by customers to whom iibCV has credit exposure, with the aim of maximizing their 

recoverability by implementing both conventional and unconventional approaches. In 

addition, the Department is responsible for managing available-for-sale real estate assets. 

The continuous and prudent management of the loan portfolio, combined with a strategy 

focused on diligent risk monitoring, helped reduce the annual percentage of non-performing 

loans (NPL) from 0.41% to 0.55%. This improvement reflects a more favourable condition, 

particularly in view of an adverse macroeconomic context that may manifest itself in the 

coming periods. 

 

5.5.!Legal 

The Legal Department aims to support the technical-legal coordination of all activities 

related to the Bank and all the processes that support such activities. 

It provides legal advice internally, by issuing opinions and drafting contracts and other legal 

documents that serve as working instruments and the basis for decision-making. 

It also works in collaboration with the Credit Recovery Department, taking pre-litigation 

action and defining the criteria and general guidelines related to it, providing support in the 

litigation phase. 
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6.!Human Capital 

The Human Capital Department follows the guidelines in iibCV’s strategy, with the core 

mission of defining, developing and implementing overall Human Capital strategies and 

policies, in order to contribute to the motivation and high-performance standards of the 

Bank’s employees. 

In view of the specific characteristics of Human Capital management, aiming to make the 

best use of skills and develop talent, and considering the need to ensure the consistency 

of policies and standards, the Department's role is to promote permanent interconnection 

with all the Bank's departments. 

The Department’s organization involves aligning the macro human resource processes 

(recruitment and selection, training and development, performance evaluation systems, 

remuneration and incentive systems, drafting employment contracts, controlling 

attendance and absenteeism, processing salaries and declaring associated tax obligations) 

with the Bank's core business, in order to maximize value creation. 
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